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COPY of the Proceepings in the Investigation inte the Conduct of the MasTer
of the Batnin Uxitox Worknousg, in 1839.

— No. 1.~

Cory of a LETTER from Mr. Thomas Iewett to the Poor Law Commissioners.

Gentlemen, 4, Holloway, Bath, 6 December 1838.

Tur following charges are made against the Governor of the Bath Union
‘Workhouse, and sufficient cvidence ean be produced to substantiate them :—

1. That whereas he is required by the duties of his situation to call over the
muster-olls of the inmates of the workhouse every moring ; such a thing is
not done once in six months, in conscquence of which the parishes of the Union
have been charged with the maintenance of paupers for many weeks after they
had ceased to be inmates, One pauper, who was in the house but two days, was
charged to the parish of Walcot for nearly seven months.  Every weekly report
made to the Board during that period must consequently have been incorrect,
as well as all the books kept in the house, the quarterly abstracts, and the
weekly returns made to the Commissioners, . )

2. That nearly all the nccounts he has returned concerning the expenditure
of the clothing ‘stores entrusted to him are false.  Of the entries made in the
Clothing Expenditure Book, not one article out of five was given out either to
the party or at the time represented. The difference between the actual stock
in hand and the stock as represented in the Clothing Receipt Book, was some-
times immense; and the actual amount of stock being unknown to him, any
one who was dishonestly disposed might have robbed the Union to a large
amount, with very little chance of detection. Instances are known, and evidence
can be produced,” of articles of dress having been brought out by paupers, und
worn by them afterwards,

3. Timt. he is in the habit of taking improper liberties with the females on
the establishment, and furnishing them with spirits, contrary to the order of the
Commissioners. .

4. That so little care is taken by him of the property of the Union, that
various articles have been at various times thrown by the paupers into the water-
closets, to such an extent as absolutely to stop the sewers, which articles have
been found aceumulated in the pipes, to the injury of the house, as well as the

destruetion of the Union property. o ]
5. That he is seldom or never known to attend Divine service, but spends the

Sabbath in a manner not calculated to set a good example to those under his
charge. The chaplain had better be examined on this subject, as he is possessed

of more information on it than myself. '
6. That some time back a pauper in the house died possessed of half-a-crown,

of which sum the Governor gave no account to the Board, but converted it to
his own usc, thouglh the man was taken out and buried by his friends.

Having acted as clerk to the Governor for upwards of 14 months, I have had
abundant opportunitics of observing the management of the accounts, and of the
estiblishment generally, and will at any time come forward and prove the
above charges. 1 have written to you at the request of several rate-payers of
the Union, who are desirous that the matter should pc .]ookcEl into, mn'd are
confident that you will tuke the neecssary steps for a strict investigation of it.

I am, &e.
Thomas Hewett,

(signed)
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— No. 2. —

Cory of a LETTER from the Poor Law Commissioners to the Clerk to the
Guardians of the Bath Union,

. _ Poor Law Commission Office, Somerset-1lonse,
Sir, 11 Dee. 1838,

Tm‘.. Poor Law Commissioners forward, for the information of the Board of
Guardmn‘s of the Bath Union, the accompanying copy of a letter which they
have received from Mr. Thomas Hewett, and the Commissioners will thank the
Board of Guardians to make an inquiry as to the truth of the several charees
against the Master of the Workhouse which that eommunication contains, wnd
report to the Commissioners the result of such inquiry. ,

(Signed by order of the Board,)
L, Chadwick, Scerctary.

—No. 3. —

Cory of a LETTER from the Clerk of the Bath Uuign to the Poor Law

Commissioners,

Gentlemen, Bath Union, 11 January 1839,

Ix reply to your communieation of the 11th December 1838, (10989 C.) T
beg_ to forward to you a copy of a resolution of the Board of Guardiuns of this
Union, passed at an adjourncd meetiig held January sth, with reference to the
charges preferred against the Governor of the Workhouse by Mr. Thomas
Hewett.

¢ That after the most patient, deliberate, and lIengthened investigation into
the several charges preferred by Mr. Hewett against the Govcmor,othe Board
have come fo the following opinion upon these charges respeétively ; viz. on the
first charge, * That the fact of having neglected to call over the musier-roll
every morning, is by the Governor’s own statements admitted; but in two or
three cases only does it appear that this neglect can have been attended with an
inerease of expenditure to any of the parishes; and the evidence adduced. to
establish even these cases, is far from being conclusive, while by the admission
of Mr. Hewett himself the Governor is fully exonerated from even the possibilit
of deriving any personal benefit by the neglect or omission.’ Y
. * On the second charge, ¢ That an irregularity on the part of the Governor
in making, or causing to be made, entrics of the reecipts and delivery of the
clothl.ug is also admitted by him; and, from certain entrics in the books, this irre-
gularity appears to have existed; but, as in the former, so in the latter charge,

the Governor is wholly exonerated from the slightest fraudulent intention, or .

from having derived any personal benefit or advantage therefrom, and without
any loss to the Union.’

“ On the third charge, ¢ That this charge las not been established; and
further, as regards that part of it alleging him to have taken libertics with the
paupers in the house, and furnishing them with spirits, it has been most fully
and satisfactorily refuted by the witnesses themselves who were brought forward
to prove it.’ ° ‘

* On the fourth chiarge, ¢ That it is wholly unproved; and further, that it has
been shown to be groundless.’ :

“ On the fifth charge, ¢ That it has been so far cstablished, by the Governor’s
own adimnission, as to show that he has been irregular in his aftendance at Divine
service; but as to the extent of that irregularity or vmission, the evidence is not
gatisfactory to the Board; and the immoral tendency of conduct implied in the
charge, and attributed to him in some of the statements made in support of it
are disproved.’ . ’

“ On the sixth charge, ¢ That it las not been proved ; hut, on the contrary
the evidence adduced in support of it (even supposing it t6 he correct) would
have the eftect of disproving it.’

“ That
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« That the stateinents of the Governor, and the evidence he has adduced in
extenuation of these parts of the several charges which aftect his conduct, though
they may have some weight, yct in the opinion of the Board they are insufficient
to free liim from censure, and cannot be admitted as an excuse for the neglect
and omission of any part of his duty, or for irregularity in so important a branch
of the public service as the clothing department of the house, inasmuch as he is
bound to report instanter to the Board the éxistence of any circumstance con-
flicting with, or preventing the uniform, constant, and striet performat..c of every
part of his official duties. _

« That in forwarding to the Poor Law Commissioners the result of this inves-
tigation, the Board feel called upon to record the expression of their distrust as
to the purity, ingenuousness, and disinterestedness- of the source from whence
they originate, emanating as they do from a discharged clerk of the Governor’s,
who from the very nature of his confidential situation had the meaus within -his
power of gratifying that malignant and rancorous spirit which has shown itself.
pending the whole of this investigation ; and, eoupled with this, such has been
the questionable and unsatisfactory nature of mueh of the evidence adduced in
support of these charges, that on that evidence alone, without the Goveraor’s
own admissions, the Board would have scarcely ventured to come to the opinion
they lrave formed.” :

I am, &e.

(signed) C. Brown, Clerk.

— No. 4. —

Cory of a LETTER from-the Clerk of the Bath Union to the
Poor Law Commissioners.

Gentlemen, Abbey-street, 12 January 1839.-

I am directed by the Board of Guardians of this Union, to forward to you
copics of charges preferred against Mr. Lawrenee, the Governor of the Work-
house, by the Rev. C. I, Watts, the Chaplain, and Mr. Thomas Hewett, and I am
further dirccted to request you will send down an Assistant Commissioner to

inquire into the same.
I am, &e.

(signed)  C. Brown, Clerk.

Note—This leifer and the enclosures were referred to the Assistant Commis-
sioner, Mr, Adey, on the 15th January, with instructions to inquire into the
charges, and report upon them.

— No. 5. —

First Enclosure to No. 4.

To the Board of Guardians for the Bath Union.

“Tne Chaplain to the Bath Union begs leave, in compliance with the request
of the Board of Guardians, to send in a list of the charges he has to prefer against
Mr. Lawrence, the Governor of the Workhouse. He is prepared to adduce the
necessary evidence when required. -

1. That Alrs. Mayrs, a pauper in the house, was heard by several to say, that
Mr. Lawrence had given her, when she was poorly, a glass of gin and water,
adding, that a good rubbing up would do her most good. One out of two of
the school ehildren who heard this, observed to the other, she could not think
what Mr. Lawrence could mean by a ¢ good rubbing up.’

2, That Mr. Lawrence was not at the house at Widcombe for 10 days and
a fortnight at a time, and did not call over the muster-roll more than once in
the course of many months. '

3. That after Mr. Lawrenee had heen informed of a woman named Austin
having stolen articles of clothing belonging to the Union, he took her into the
kitchen and allowed her all the privileges of an honest woman.

4. That

489. A3
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4. That Mr, Lawrence went into the school-room one day when the children
were out, Em(l taking hold of one of the sehoolmistress’s hands, foreed it into
a pocket (situated low, and nearly in the front) of his smock-frock, in which
was a long warm kidney potato. The person whe witnessed this act was so struck
with the particular mamer of doing it, as to say, ¢ The nasty, insolent, indecent
fellow, if he had done it to e, I would have g'ivcn him a box on the car;’ and
also .declarcd to the Chaplain, that she considered it at the time ns only next to
pushing the hand into his breeches. )

5. That Mrs. Marrs had been heard by several to say, she knew enough of
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence to get them turned out of thejr places, and to ruin them ;
that the hottest place in hell was not too hot for them ; and that she was deter.
n}med she would write to Mr. Anderson, the chairman of the Board, and tell
him all she knew.

6. That Mr. Lawrence has been most shamefully tampering with the in-
mates of the house. . ) ;

7. That Mary Hewitt, a young woman now in the house, deelares herself
prepared to swear that Mr. Lawrence forced her, more than once, into illicit con-
nexion with him; that she had been with child by him; that she told him so in
the presence of others; that Miss Lawrence went on her knees to her, to beg

she would say she was with child b]y' some other man, promising ler baby.

f:lothes, &e., if she would do so; that threats and bribes were had recourse to, to
induce her to deny the above; that she ultimately miscarried, &e., &c. This
matter the Chaplain finds has long been the common talk of the house, and
strong evidence, in addition to Mary Hewitt's statement, can be produced.

8. That Mr. Lawrence’s daughter has been in the frequent habit of sending
provisions, bread, bacon, cheese, butter, as well as articles of clothing beloneing
to the Union, out of the house. There are those who are ready to come for?var?l
and swear they have seen the things given out at the porter's gate, have eaten
and purchased portions of the eatables; that provisions also have frequently been
thrown over the wall, and many equally wrong things done Ly the same person.

9. That Mr. Lawrence is in the habit of withholding from the paupers the
clothing they are entitled to.

_ The Chaplain would add, that e has discovered a strong spirit of disaffec-
tion among the working paupers, who were loud and bitter in their corplaints
against the Governor and lis wife.

— No. ¢. —
Seeond Enelosure 1o No. 4.

To the Guardians of the Bath Union.

Tue Chaphin of the Union begs leave to hand in to the Board further
charges against the Governor of the Workhouse :— ’

1. That Mr. Lawrence has had paupers of the house commiited to prison
upon a false oath, of which there is the most satisfactory evidence.

“ 2. That Mr. Lawrence is in the habit of locking up paupers of both sexes
for the_most trifling offence, in a cold, damp place, for 24 hours together, with-
out a bit of straw. ~The Chaplain is aware that solitary confirement is allowed
but surely not of this kind, especially at this scason of the year. Many have
been thus confined quite lately. One case ulone will be sufficient to give: A
woman, seven months gone in the family way, was, a very short time since,
commilted for a very trifling offence, to the cell {called by the paupers, the black
hole,) for 24 hours.” She was put in about 12 o’clock, . 1. 3 when night ad-
vanced, and it hecame extremely cold (she had no bonnet on, and was very
thinly elad), 2 person went to Mr. L. to remind him of her situation, (i.e., her
being far gone with child,) and to intreat him to let her out for the night, to go
In again in the morning, to which he replied, * Oh, T will stand the conse-
quences ; let her out I will not.”” In the course of the night, the woman declares,
she fainted, and, at another time, her lamentations and groans were so loud and
heart-rending, that two men quitted their beds, got through the window of their
sleeping-room, and, going to her, asked her what was the manner, * Oh,” she

' replied,

OF THE BATH UNION WORKHOUSE. 7

replied, “ do go and intreat Mr. Lawrence to let me out, for I am nearly
perished with cold, and 1 am sure I shall die before the morning.” The men
could not rest on account of her eries and moanings, yet dared not go to Mr.
Lawrence. The woman says, that the walls of the cell ran with water, added
to which, there was a severe frost.  In the morning, a slice of dry bread and a
cup of cold water was taken to her for the third time, and, at 12 o'clock, she
was let out, when she was so ill as to be obliged to go into the sick ward, and to
be put to bed ; she continued ill, she says, for a week. Is not this cruelty, bar-
barity, almost surpassing belief? If the woman had died, which nothing but her
having the constitution of a dog could have prevented, surely Mr. Lawrence
would have Leen her murderer. Mr. Lawrence has had the audacity to say,
that the treatment js sanctioned by the law ; which does not allow in these cells
more comforts than in a soldier’s guard-room, where there is no straw. Who
can belicve this; viz., that the law is so cruel and barbarous? And admitting
that the soldier’s guard-room has no straw in it, how very different, it must be
observed, is the case and situation of a drunken, well-clad soldier, whose liquor
within, and clothes without, keep him warm, to that of a poor, wretched woman,
and that too in the family way. The ccndemned felon has plenty of straw, if
not a mattress to lic upon. It is very evident that Mr. Lawrence is a merciless
tyrant. The Chaplain has to apologize for the observations he has made, for
which the horrible circumstances of the case he has stated, will, he feels, plead
a suflicient excuse. :

3. Mr. Lawrence threatened to cut off a young man’s hair because he aske
for his dinner. The working men’s dinner had been taken back, being short of
weight, with a request that the deficiency might be made up; it was accordingly
withheld altogether. .

4, There is 2 man named Rose in the house, a bad, drunken fellow, whom
I was obliged to get discharged from his situation of porter at Widcombe, but
who imagines Miss Gane was the cause of his discharge ; the man has lately been
taken into the kitchen (a privileged place), and 1s sent out of the house on
errands, &e. A few nights since he came into the working men’s ward quite
drunk ; shortly after, going out into the yard, he was locked out, the doors
having Leen 'f?asteued for the night during his absence, but Mr. Lawrence had
him let in, The next morning Mr. Lawrence said to him, laughingly, © Why,
you were drunk last night, Rose,” and no more. For the same offence, another
would have been put into solitary confinement. This was on a Saturday, and,
on the Monday following, this drunken fellow had given to him, by Mr. Law-
rence, a good pair of shoes, worth 55, or 6s., and a hat that had belonged to a

pauper who had died.

7 January 1839,

—No. 7. —
Third Enclosure to No. 4.

Sir, ‘ : 4, Holloway, 31 December 1838.

Tue following charge is made against the Governor of the Bath Union Work-
house, and evidence will be advanced in support of it :—

‘ That he has been in the habit of appropriating to his own private use sums of
money which paupers in the workhouse have died possessed of, and has wilfully
omitted in his reports to the Board of Guardians to make return of the sums of
money which such paupers have so died possessed of.” .

This charge I shall principally endeavour to prove in the instance of a pauper
of the name of Batcs, who died some time back possessed of a sovereign; but it
is my opinion that I shall be able to prove against him other cases of the same
nature.

The evidence I shall require from the workhouse will be a woman of the
name of Ann Akerman, and the following documents: The register of deaths,
and the whele of the Governor’s reports to the Board from the first to the last.
These reports have been kept-filed, in order, from the first formation of the
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Union, and had better be secured as soon as possible, in order that no alierition
may be made in them.
I am, &e.
(signed) Thomas Hewett,

I beg to trouble you with the inclosed, which I drew up with the intention of
swearing to it before the magistrates; but upon application o to do Mr. Inman
informed me that they had no power to administer an oath merely for the satis-
faction of an individual or n party; nevertheless the statements it contains are
true, and I am ready and willing fo make oath to them at any time.

7. 1.

Tfromas Hewett maketh oath, and saith, that during the former part of the .
year 1837, he was in the employment of John Lawrence, Governor of the Bath -

Union Werklouse, as clerk ; that deponent was in the habit of drawing up the
reports presented to the Board of Guardians at their weckly meetings, in which
reports were entered the names of any paupers who might lave died during the
week, together with the account of any clothes or other effccts which the said
paupers were possessed of; that some time during the month of March 1837, a
pauper of the name of Thomas Newman died at Walcot Workhouse, and return
thereof was made to the Board of Guardians on the Wednesday following, and
an account was given at the same time of certain clothes, and of nothing but
clothes which the said Thomas Newman had died possessed of, which account
was drawn up by deponent in pursuance of the Governor's direction ; that on
the return of the report from the Board it was placed on the file with the est;
that on the following day, Thursday, as deponent was writing at the des{: in.
the office, the Governor teok the above-named report from the file, and point-
“ing with his finger to the. account entered therein of the clothes which tho
above-named Thomas Newman died possessed of, ordered deponent to add
thereto the words, * and two shillings and sixpence in money,” which words
deponent added accordingly, and the Governor replaced the report on the file
with his own hands ; and’ deponent further saith, that he hath not at any sub-
sequent period made any alteration whatever in the said document.

'—" NO. 8.— .

Cory of a LETTER from the Poor Law Commissioners to the Clerk of the
Bath Union. '

Poor Law Commission Office, Somerset 1lousc,
Sir, ‘ 15 January 1839,

I ax directed by the Poor Law Commissioners to acknowledge the receipt of
your letter of the 12th instant, and to inform you they have instructed their
Assistant Commissioner, Mr. Adey, to take an early opportunity of investigat-
ing the charges preferred against Mr. Lawrence, the Master of the Bath Union
‘Workhouse, by the Rev. C. F. Watts and Mr. Thomas Hewett,

. I have, &e.

(signed)  E. Chadwicl, Sccrct.ary.,

. -~ No. 0. bt
Cory of a REPORT from Mr. Adey to the Poor Law Commissioners.

The Chaplain’s Charges against the Master of the Workhouse.

Gentlemen, Bath Union, 27 January 1839.

I nave the honour to acquaint you, that in pursuance of the directions on the

* See Noteto No. 4. back of (271 C.)* to inquire and report to you on the several charges brought
against John Lawrence, the Master of the DBath Workhouse, I proc%zdcddon
rsday
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Thursday last to make such inquiry; having previously caused the clerk of the
Union to apprize the several members of the Board of Guardians the day and
hour such investigation would take place, and to solicit their attendance.” The
chairman and a great many other guardians attended accordingly; and I pro-
ceeded first to inquire into that charge of the Chaplain which appeared to me to
bear the most serious character, viz. of the Master having had a criminal con-
nexion with a pauper in the house. '

I annex to this report the evidence taken on this charge marked (No. 1,
D. G. A)); that evidence will speak for itself; but I cannot help observing, as
the defence consisted only in an attempt to prove the principal witness, Mary
Hewett, of imbecile mind, that in the whole course of my experience as a
magistrate 1 have never met with a witness whose testimony was given in a
more convincing manner. Her first appearance induced me to suppose that
there was some foundation for the defence I understood was intended to be set
up, and I therefore examined her particularly as to her knowledge of the nature
of an oath, and her replies fully satisfied me that she was perfectly conscious of
the serious responsibility she took upon herself in swearing falsely, and entirely
freed my mind from the impression of her imbecility.

Her tale was told in the most artless but connected style, without hesitation,
and without the slightest appearance of a concocted story, and a long cross-
examination by Mr. Lawrence, numerous questions heing suggested to him by
several of the guardians present, neither produced the slightest hesitation in her
replies, nor shook in the least degree her original testimony.

[ shall not venture to anticipate your decision on this charge by any further
observations thau this, viz. that could the slightest confirmatory evidence of
Mary Hewett’s accusation have been brought forward, 1 should not hesitate to
give an unfavourable opinion against the Master. As no such evidence can, I’
believe, be adduced, Thardly suppose you will consider her unsupported testi-
mony sufficient proof of its truth.

The inquiry nto this charge occupied the whole of Thursday, and as I was
engaged at the Clifton Union on Friday, I was nccessitated to adjourn the in-
vestigation to this day, when I procceded to the evidence,

1st. On the charge of a Mr. Thomas Hewett against the Master for embez-
zling a sovereign, of which a pauper named Webb Bates died possessed of. B
the evidence annexed, marked (No. 2, D. G. A.) you will perceive how this
charge terminated in proving Mr. Hewett had no other ground for his accusa-
tion than that the accounting for the money to the parish officers had been in
some measure delayed.

I then proceed to examine the Chaplain’s next most serious charges, viz. of
undue severity on the part of the Master towards Rebecea Collets. I annex the
evidence taken on this charge, marked (No. 3, D.G.A.) I believe you will
consider it a perfect exculpation of the Master, and I therefore think “it suffi-
cient to add, that the pauper in questior is ome of the low prostitutes of this
city.

With respect to the remainder of Mr. Watis's charges, having on comparing
them reason to think that, with the exception of one of taking a false oath, an
offence which I have told him and the Board of Guardians should be investi-
gated and dealt with at an ordinary tribunal of the country, that they are vir-
tually the same as those brought forward a month ago by Mr. Hewett, and
which have been disposed of by the Board of Guardians in their communication
(270 C.) to you, 1 have addressed a letter to the Board, requesting to know
whethier such is or is not the fact, and whether it is their wish that a re-in-
vestigation should take place by me. This letter will be taken into consider-
ation by the guardians on Wednesday next, who will then acquaint me with

their further wishes upon the subject. In the interim I shall proceed to visit -

other Unions in my district. :

From the very strong feeling exhibited, I may say by the whole Board, I have
every reason to helieve, however, that they will consider further investigation by
e unnecessary.

I have, &e.

(signed)  D. G. Adey.

See No. 3.




July 1837.

November 1837.

March 1838.

April 1838,
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— No. 10, —

First Enclosure to No. 9.

Bath Union, 24 January 1839,

The Lvidence, taken on Oath, before me, D). (. Adey, Assistant Poor Law
Commissioner, on the Complaint of the Rev. C. Watts, against John Law-
reace, the Master of the Bath Workhouse, for having had a Criminal
Connexion with Mary Hewett, a Pauper therein,

Mary Hewett, a pauper belonging to St. Michael, 27 years of age, on outh,
says:—IJ came first into the poor house two years ago. About 18 months ago,
when I was doing some worL in the kitchen, Mr. Lawrence told me to go up
into his bed-room to get his boots down ; Mr. Lawrence was in the kitchen wheh
he told me this. When I came up to his room I was frightencd to sce lhim
there, as I had never known him up before when I had been there, as-I was
accustomed to clean it, Mr. Lawrence pushed me on the bed immediately, and
forced me to have criminal connexion with him. This was in the summer time,
in July or August, on a Wednesday. That passed by, and I never said anything
till the second time. Between three and four months after I was cleaning the
office where Mr. Lawrence writes ; I went to the fire-place and told him I wanted
a pair of shoes ; he felt my foot, and said he would let me have a pair, and told
me to follow him into the store-room ; he put three counterpanes down on the
floor and told me to lay down. I asked whether he would let me have a pair of
shoes, and he said he would give me a pair for nothing, and told me to make

-lhaste before Mr. Welceh, the schoolmaster, came down, 1 did lay down, and had

criminal connexion with him.

About four months afterwards, I was walking in the yard one Sunday after-
noon, I told Harriet Southey I had something heavy on my mind (she is a
pauper in the workhouse, aged about 28, who has a child; she is now married);
that I thought I was in the family way, and told her I thought it was by Mr.
Lawrence ; 1 asked her what I had better do; and she desired me to siop him in
the yard and tell him of it myself. Mrs. Marrs came up to know what was the
matter, that is, what I was saying to Harriet Southey; Mrs, Marrs asked me
about it, and I told her what I had told Harriet, that I thought I was in the
family way by Mr. Lawrence. Mrs. Marrs said she would go down and tell Mbs,
Lawrence,

The cook in the kitchen called me down next morning into Mr. Lawrence’s
office. Mr. Lawrence was present. Mrs. Lawrence asked me if Mr, Lawrence
had not used me in a rough manner, and I said, Yes. [ took her meaning to
be, that Mr. Lawrence had eriminal conrexion with me. Mr. Lawrence told
them to open the door and let me out, and said he would send for Mr. Hemmet
and lave me before the justice. I then went out of the office. Harrict Southey,
Ann Yescombe, and a woman who is dead, called Ann Salter, and Mr. W clcfl,
the schoolmaster, were present. In the afternoon Mr. Gore came, and 1 was sent
for to come over from the ward I was in to the lying-in ward. Mr. Gore ex-
amined me, but said nothing, but went down stairs. That same afternoon 1
heard Mr. Gore say in the kitchen thatI wasin the family way. Mrs. Lawrence
and Harrict Southey were present, and might have heard Mr, Gore say so.  Miss

wrence, who is about 16, was sitting in the cooking kitchen ; she called me a
great many names, but immediately after said she would give me some baby
clothes, if I would say it was somebody else’s child. Linmediately after this [
went into the office before the lawyer, 1 don’t know his name, but Mr. Lawrence
was not present, but-Mr. Welch was.  Miss Lawrence told me when I weat into
the office to the lawyer, to say it was Thomas Longmead’s child. '

When I told Harriet Southey I thought I was with child by Mr. Lawrence,
I knew it could be by no one else.  Mr. Lawrence did not hold out any induce-
ment to me to swear the child to any one else, _

1 was with child; I know it, because I felt it. I thought I was three or
four-months gone with .child. I did not have a child, but miscarried about
thrée weeks alfter being called hefore the lawyer. No one was present. 1 did
not mention I had miscarried to any one. I was ill after it, but did not consult
the doctor, 1 miscarried in the house at Walcot, in the water-closet. 1 was at

that
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that time in the upper ward. I was unwell for several days. About two days
afterwards Aun Salter, who is dead, asked me if I was poorly, and I told lle_r 1
was; but I did not tell her I had miscarried. I went to the water-closet, fecling
an inclination for a motion I had the usual symptoms to induce me to go there,
and something came away besides while I was doing my other occasions. It
dropped very heavy, but I'never saw it. T had the usual discharge afterwards,
such as I usually have when I am unwell, but more of it; it lasted a week, 1
had not had the usual discharge for near five months. I had no other symptoms ;
no unpleasantuess about the bosom. [ was at the water-closet half an hour. 1
usually remain there as long. I came away and went up stairs, and did not tell
any one, but went about my usual employment. When I was unwell, previous
to being in the family way, I was not regular as to time. I understand what is
meant; I never found anything come away from me before when I was usually
unwell.  When I felt the'ehild I felt a fluttering in my inside; I had never felt
the same symptoms before. 1 was in the laundry when I first felt the fluttering ;
it was ahout a month before I went to the water-clozet, It all came away at
once. I know it was not a motion, beeause it came both ways. 1 did not feel
the child when 1 went to the water-closet ; I did not feel the same finttering
sensation I did threc weeks before in the-laundry. 1 was regular once after §
was with child; at the time Mr. Gore came; I mean a fortnight before he
examined me. - _

1 was regular after I miscarried; it was a month after; and I have been
regular ever since. 1 was not unwell at the time Mr. Gore saw me. When 1
first felt the fluttering of the child in the laundry I mentioned it to Harriet
Southey. '

Examined by Mr. Lawrence.

I know a man of the name of Thomas Longmead. Ie was in the work-
house on the 15th February 1838. I absconded from the workhouse on the 15th
February, I did not agrec to meet Longmead, I was admitted again the 25th
March, I have met Longmead at a public-house called the ¢ Malt and Hops.
I met him two days before the 15th March, Iwent with a woman, named Gray,
to the * Lamb and Cottage,” and ilere I saw Longmead ; this was on the 14th
March, the day before I came back to the workhouse. I went to the “ Malt and
Hops” for three pints of beer for Mrs. Carrington; I took the beer to Mrs. Car-
rington, but did not return to the public-house, but went tomy work. I did not
oo that night to the * Talbot.” Longmead did not goto Mrs. Carrington with me,
1 know a person of the name of Elizabeth Badger. I stopt with her all night.
I walked about the streets of Bath with her. We went into the * Silver Lion™ about
three o’clock in the morning ; this was on the 13th March, Longmead was not
with me. I was not taken up by the police. Elizabeth Badger is dead. Inever
was at the Guildhall with Elizabeth Badger. I applied to Mr. Douglas, the
relieving officer, for re-admission into the workhouse on Monday, the 12th March.

Mr, Douglas asked me several questions; he asked me whether I was in the
family way, Ieaid I did not know. Mr. Douglas asked me these questions at
the time I applied for re-admission, and told me to come before the Board of
Guardians, and I was then re-admitted. : .

I went out again a week after the Queen was crowned,

1 applied to the relieving officer for re-admission about three months after-
wards, and I was re-admitted the 3d of October. Mr. Douglas asked me several
questions then ; he asked me whether it was true that 1 was in the family way
by you. I said, No. I first told Mr. Watts that I had been with child by
Mr. Lawrence about a forinight ago ; Mr. Watts asked me. I have had no con-
versation with Mr. Waits since that time, nor with anybody else. I did not like
to communicate my being with child to Mr. Hemmet. I told the lawyer that 1
had had connexion with Longmead. Miss Lawience told me to say so; this was
the day the lawyer came. I acknowledged to the lawyer Longmead was the
father, because Miss Lawrenece told me. I acknowledged that Mr. Lawrence
knew nothing of it.

I have never had connexion with Longmead.

I recollect the day I had first connexion with Mr. Lawrence, because it was
the time when the cleetion for Members of Parltament was, :

After 1 saw the lawyer I received different food from what I was accustomed
to; the food wassuet pudding, some greens and bacon ; this was only once. Ann

439, B2 Yescombe

3 July.
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Yescombe bronght the suet pudding, greens and bacon, and told me if T was
called down, to keep in the same story 1 had told the lawyer ; by being called down
I mean before Mr. Hemmet and otfxer gentlemen of the Board of Guardians, 1
was cleaning the stairs when I veceived the food from Ann Yescombe, She did
not tell me when I was to eat it. Ann Yescombe did not bring this food to me
with any message. Two or three hours after I reccived the food Ann Yescombe
told me I should never want for anything. Aun Yescombeis a pauper, and acted
then as cook. ,

No threat of being sent to prison was ever made to me, if I did not lay the
child to Thomas Longmead ; suet pudding is the ordinary food every Saturday ;
I received it on a Saturday. ’
. 1 know a passage near the Silver Lion; I have never met Longinead in the
passage.

No one has ever told me to say what I have said to-day.

The first connexion I had with Mr. Lawrence took place about 11 o’clock in
the morning,

The second connexion took place about 8 o’clock in the morning,

I do not recollect the day of the weck. These were the only times.

Harriet Southey, 28 years old, a pauper belonging to Walcot parish, on oath,
says:—I know Mary Hewett; she told me she was with child by the Governor,
we were walking at the Lottom of the yard near the wash-house ; she told me
she had something laying very heavy on her mind ; I asked her what it was, and
she re.phed, that _she was with child by Mr. Lawrence, but did not like to say
anything about it for fear Mr. Lawrence should scold her. She had never
spoken to me on the subject before. It was about 10 months ago from this
time that she told me this; she spoke to me twice afterwards on the subject in
the laundry, and said she could feel the fluttering of the child ; I'm sure Mury
Hewett made use of the word “ fluttering,” other persons heard it.

Mr. LZawrence's Defence.

Rickard Thomas Gore, surgeon, on oath, says:—I am the, medical officer of
the workhouse ; I knew Mary Hewett; 1 was called in to examine her; 1 rather
think my attention was directed to her by Mr. Lawrence, with a view to aseer-
tain whether she was pregnant. I think it was in 1837. 1 was never called in
more than once with reference to that matter,  There was no manual examina-
tion, but I satisfied myself of her state, and the conclusion 1 came to was that
she neither was pregnant, nor had been pregnant.

Her understanding appeared so obtuse on the subjeet, that I do not think she
understood my questions in the way females generally do,

I never stated in the kitchen, or any other part of the house at all, that she
was in the family way. I have the most perfect and absolute recollection that
¥ never so said, |

I do not consider Mary Hewett insane, but I consider her powers of mind
considerably less than those of other people in her situation of life,

I consider she is quite capable of telling whether or not a man had criminal
connexion with her. :

I consider her state of mind to be such as to be easily led away, but I do not
consider it so weak as to prevent her telling a connected story.

- James Hammett, a guardian, on oath, says:—I have known Mary Hewett
‘about 15 years, and I have always considered her of very weak mind ; in earl
‘age she was subject to fits. As a visitor on the 21st April last, with Mr, B]atllJz
waite and other gentlemen (as a school committee), Mr. Lawrence addressed
me on leaving the house, to ask my advice how he was to proceed upon a very
delicate subject, telling me that it had been reported in tﬁc house that Mar
Hewett was with child by him. A few days afterwards, I think the Sundagrr
following, 1 called at the Walcot house and I saw Mary Hewett ; I believe 1
asked her whether there was any truth in the report of what had taken place in
the house, relafive to her connexion with Mr. Lawrence, to which she made no
r(-p]lgv; but asked me for some money to buy a handkerchicf to go over her
neck, F : I8 e
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— Neo. 11.—
Second Enclosure to No. 0,

Bath Union, 26 January 1839.

Tue evidence taken before me, I. G, Adey, Assistant Poor Law Commis-
sioner, on a complaint made by Thomas Hewett, against John Lawrence, the
Muster of the Bath Workhouse, for appropriating to his own use thé sum of
one sovercign, which Webb Bates, a pauper belonging to the parish of Waleot,
died possessed of, about Christmas 1837.

Mr. Lawrence produced a receipt, dated 28th November 1838, from Joseph
Simpkins, for 1 /. as left by Webb Bates.

Joseph Simpkins, overseer of the parish of Walcot, stated that the receipt
was in his handwriting, and that the 1/, was received by him, of Mr. Lawrence
at the time stated therein. . '

’_NOo 12o—"'

Third Enclosure to No. 9.

Bath Union, 26 January 1839.
Tue evidence taken before me, D. G. Adey, Assistant Poor Law Law Com-
missioner, on the complaint made by the Rev. C. F. Watts, against John Law-
rence, the Master of the Bath Workhouse, for improperly confining Rebeeca
Collett for 24 hours, in acell called by the paupers the black hole, about the

22d of November last.

The Conduct Book of the Bath Union was produced, in which appeared the
following entry : R

—_— Date. . Offence. Pupishment Awarded,
Rebecea Collett, | 24 Nov. 1838 - |- - Fighting, and | - - Confined for 24 hours in
aged 22, using vulgar and | the refractory ward on bread
abusive language, | and water. '
2d offence. - “J.C.

In the Conduct Book appeared also the followiné entfy :

Rebecea Collett, | 26 July 1638 - | - - Absenting her- | - - Confined for 24 hours in

aged 22, self from the mes- | the refractory ward on bread
senger when taken | and water, - ‘

from the Board-| - : C. B,

room; gettingdrunk:

and using abusive

language.

Captain J. Campbell, sworn :—The charge defined in the Conduct Book, and
signed with my initials, was investigated by the Board, and the statements then
made bore out the charge even to a greater degree than the Conduct Book
alleged. I have a perfect recollection of the whole case.

C. Batlford, esq., vice-chiairman, sworn :—1 have no particular recollection of
the circumstances of Rebecen Collett’s case on the 24th November; but 1
have no doubt they were investigated by the Board, from such being the usual
Bractice; and that the Board approved of it; the initials C. B. in the Conduct

ook are mine. -

The Admission and Discharge Book was. produced, from whence it appeared

that Rebecea Collett was admitted on the 30th of October 1838, as pregnant.
48g. B 3 Samuel
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Samucl Ganes, sworn:—I am porter to the Bath Workhouse. 1 recollect
Rebeeea Collett being confined in the black hole in November last. I took
ler food three times, and went once to sce if she wanted water ; the last time, in
the evening, was about seven o’clock ; the first time, in the morning, was about
seven o’clock ; she then said she was very ill, and thought she would have died
in the night; she did not appear ill any more than the rest that are locked up,
I let her out about 12 o’clocl; ; she cursed and said she did not care anything
about it ; she did not appear unusually fatigued ; she walked through the yard
very well, °

Examined by Mr. /Patts.

There was no straw in the cell; 1 eannot recollect whether or not it was
a cold night. 1 did not notice the state of the walls of the cell at that period ;
several paupers asked me whether she was coming out; I did not ask the
Governor to let her out; but when I returned the keys to him at nine o'clock
I asked him whether she was coming out, and told him she said he did not dare
to keep herin. I think he said he wonld take the chance of that. ‘I'he reuson
I asked whether she was coming ont, was, that it was stated she was in the
family way, and the Governor, when there is any one large in the family way.
docs not keep them in over night. I cannot say whether' or not Nurse Jones
was one of the persons who asked me whether she was to come out? and when
Mr. Watts asked me on Tuesday, I told him I could not say anythine about
that; I cannot say whether she had a bonnet or not, she had no cloak. "1 can-
not say whether she had a shawl.

Examined by Mr. Zammett,

I cannot say whether or not she cut her food ; 1 did not see her take anv
out, )

Cross-examined by Mr. Zawrence.

Mr. Watts told me I was to recollect myself. I had some com'ex"smion wilth
you ’yesterday, and that is what I told you. I do not recollect I said anything
to Weeks yesterday on the subject ; Mr. Watts has only spoken to me once 0?1

the subject, on Tuesday last. I have scen him since, but he has not spoken to
me on the subject.

AMary Ann Wake, a pauper belonging to Walcot parish, on eath, says:—
I'was the bedfellow of Rebecea Collett at the time she was locked n'p vather
bettcr_ than a month ago; I saw her the day she was let out, about two ;’clock ;
I saw her come out of the laundry; she then came into onr ward. the ables
bodied women’s ward. She was scarcely uble to walk ; she trembled with cold -
her sister, 1, and others persuaded her to go into bed, and we warmed her petti:
coats to put to her bowels and feet, and took two hlankets off the other women’s.
ped to put on her bed. She shivered under the clothes, and her teeth rattled
in her head ; her sister brought her some broth ‘and some tea and grucel before
we could get any warmth into her. She went to bed about two o'clock. and it
was not till seven o’clock in the evening that warmth was got into her. , About
seven o’c.lock, Sandell, a pauper in the house, who then acted as cook brourrilt
up a basin qf tea, and said she, Collett, was to drink that by Mrs. L:;wrcm?c‘s
express desire, and a rushlight was also sent, and some dry tea and sugar
Dlresztly after the tea was sent, Mrs. Jones, a midwife, came to my hed side I
was in bed with Rebeeca Collett ; Mrs. Jones said she was very bad, and ouf:'ht
to be 1"cmovcd to where she, Mrs. Jones, was sleeping, in case shr.-'mifrht mis-
carry in the night. She was then taken into Mrs. Jones's ward, and I believe she
slept there that night, ’

- Examined by Mr. IPatts,

I know there was flooding taking place when she came into the ward, Mr.
Gore was sent for about five o’clock ; he came. I think she was locked up on
Sunday, and let out on Sunday.

Ltichard Thomas Gore, medical officer of the Bath W orkhouse, on oath says:—
I was at _the_ workhouse on the 24th November, and I was called in to Rebecen

Collelt’s
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Collett's case, about four or five o’clock in the afternoon. 1 found her complain-
ine of illness, which illuess I considered of a very slight chavacter. She or
othiers mentioned or said she had been in confinement; I do not recollect that
she expressed any apprehension of a miscarriage.  She said she was pregnant,
and scven monthis pregnant, but I had great doubts of it; she and 1 diftering
in opinion as to her being pregnant. 1 recollect telling her that it was need-
less we should dispute on the point, as a little time would show; I considered
her discase to be an excessive flow of what is natural to females. 1 pre-
seribed for her, and saw her up again to the 1st December several times, when
she was discharged cured. My opinion relative to her pregnancy remained the

' game.

Examined by Mr. Watts.

The tern monorrhagia used in the medical return, is a very extensive term,
and may mean flow of blood from the female parts either attending or non-
attending miscarriage. 1 expressed my doubt to Rebecca Collett of her being
pregnant, seven months gone, which excited in her great annoyance. I can give
a decided opinion when a woman 1s seven months, which I coqld not give ifshe
was only two or three months gone. Itis a very common thing for woman to
make mistakes a3 to their time. I knew the women had been in confinement.
1 have no recollcetion of her having any shivering fit; I have no recollection of
hearing she liad been labouring under a shivering fit from cold. I cannot say I
formed any opinion that her indisposition had arisen from the confinement ; I
did not see anything in the case at the time to lead me to suppose her illness
had arisen from the eonfinement. I was in great doubt as to her being preg-
nant, and thercfore the question of her miscarriage was a secondary consider-
ation, which I did not enter on, except to take the safe side. I do not recollect
ever having been called on to attend her before.

Mary Jones, a pauper of Walcot parish, sworn, says :—1 act as mid-
wife; I'recollcet Rebecca Collett being confined in the refractory ward; it is
alout seven weeks ago; I saw her, when she was in h.er own ward, between
seven and cight o'clock ; she was in 2 state of flooding, the same as she
was when she came into the house six or seven weeks before. 1 took her out
of her ward and brought her into mine, put her to bed, there she remained till
the next morning ; there was then nothing the matter with her, and she re-
turned to her ward, She told me she was in the family way six or seven
months. When she was taken into my ward she never said anything about a
miscarriage; she was conveyed into my ward by Mrs, Lawrence's desire, and I
burnt a rushlight with her all night; it was by Mrs. Lawrence’s advice she
was put into my ward ; I had nothing to do with it; L approved of that advice,
as I then had ler safe in my care. 1 was not sure whether she might be deli-
vered of a seven months’ child. God knows what might happen; 1 did not
think that would happen. )

In the morning she went of her own accord into her own back ward;
I dirccted her to do so, as there was nothing the matter with her, Mrs. Law-
rence having told me to do so in that case; I mean that there was nothing the
matter with lier but that she was able to go down stairs to her own ward.

Mr. King—When I was first called to her the discharge was the usual
discharge, not such as led me to suppose premature labour was likely to take

Nace. -
[ Mr. Barrow.—1 did not say when I first saw Rebecca Collett, she had better
be reinoved into my ward for fear she should miscarry.

— No. 13. —

Cory of a LETTER from the Rev. C. Fowell Watls to the Poor Law -
Commissioners.

Gentlemen, Bath, 4, Nelson-place, 1 February 1839.

missioner for investigation, and having reccived for reply the communication
480, B4 contained

Havixg sent in the enclosed charges, No. 1, to the Assistant Poor Law Cdm- G Bnclosures,
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No. 1g. contained in No. 8, I beg leave, with the sanction and by the advice of Mr.
Adey to forward them, together with the other accompanying documents, to

jourselves, with a request that you will be so obliging as to instruct him to
Investigate them, if you think it necessary, before he quits these western parts.
Allow me at the same time to observe, that I consider Collett’s ease not only to
have been very imperfeetly and partially investigated, but also that some of the
witnesses gave a most equivocating and unfair, not to say a false cvidence.
I allude chicfly to the nurse and the medical man, The murse, for example,
pretended she did not expect the woman’s miscarriage, which 20 people know
she did; she also said the woman walked down stairs the following morning of
her own accord, although it is well known that Mrs. Lawrence, the matroun, scnt
to say she (Collett) should not stay in the midwife’s (i. . the nurse's) room if
nothing was going to happen; that is, if she was not going to miscarry. The
medical man likewise stated that he did not form any opinion of the cause of
her illness; that he did not go into causes, yet the woman herself, and one or
two more who were present, are ready to swear that; and after having heard
she ad been confined in the punishment cell all night, he said, * Well, T will
do my best for you, but why don’t you manage to keep out of such places?”
which observation, of course, plainly implied that he considered the attack to
arise from her confincment. “This would have been inquired into and brought
out in the course of his examination, had not some of the guardians at my side
so interrupted me with continued insults as to affect my memory and self-pos-
session, and had not several important questions been disallowed. I would
observe, too, that not only was not the woman permitted to make her own state-
ment, but that I was not allowed to call upon three very principal witnesses ;
one a man who went fo the woman during the night, and the two others women
who heard the midwife beg the porter to ask Mr. Lawrence to let the woman out
for the night. The examination took place on a Saturday (January 26th), and

No. 17. in the evening I wrote the enclosed note, No, 2, to the Assistant Commissioner,
No.19. and received the enclosed reply, No.3. In what I have said respeeting facilities

not afforded, &ec., 1 alluded not only to the fact of my having been prevented

calling upon important witnesses, but also to the facts of some of the guardians

so insultingly interrupting me; of the Master having been permitted again and

again to bring false statements, and of my not having been allowed to have

brought down from the workhouse, under my own eye, the witnesses [ required,

which I felt to be most necessary, knowing as I did the various ruses in the way

of intimidation, &e. &ec. that had been had recourse to by Mr. Lawrence,

Grieved in my spirit at all I saw and heard (particularly at the feeling of inhu-

manity exhibited, and at the manner in which the medical men acted), after

No.19.  having received Mr. Adey's note, No. 3, above referred to, I sat down and drew

No. 16. out the questions I have sent you, No. 4, which you will perceive are chicfly
signed by medical men of Bristol and Clifton, and most eminent ones they are,

I applied to them (amongst whom only one is known to me, and there is, I know,

veriv little intimacy between themselves) on account of my discovering some

little reluctance on the part of the Bath medical men, owing to their local

interests and ties, &c. &c., but in so plain a case of conrse it is immaterial from
whom the testimony is derived. And now I would again return to the case
itself; I mean the investigation of it, on which I beg permission to make a fow
more remarks. There was clearly an attempt made to treat this case with as
much indifference as possible; to make it out that the offence of the woman

warranted the punishment inflicted ; that the cell was not exactly as I deseribed ; -
that the law sanctioned the punishment, and that the woman is not in the family
way, The Offence Book stated her confinement to be for * fighting and abu-
sive language.” These are great sounding words, whereas the real offence was
the giving a smack on the face to a woman twice her own size, and uttering
angry words to her for circulating a false report about her, which many are
ready to prove upon oath. The truth is, it is well known, the Master had ‘what
is commonly called a spite against the poor woman ; that there was no straw i
the cell; that the woman was clad as described in the questions the evidence
will show; and that the cell which the porter, when questioned, replied he did
not at the time notice, was, as deseribed in questions,—so damp that the walls ran
with water, I am ready to prove by many witnesses. Indeed the porter has
since admitted, that af that scason or in damp weather it is so; and low, I
would ask, could it he otherwise, when the walls of the cntrauce hall, where

there
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there is a fresh current of air, are so at such limcs.. The porter .:ﬂsod r(:plmd}, lm
evidence, he did not hear the }mm-:m’s groans or crics, but ]—IEI [?]mlltte' 3 s;ag s:)e
slept so far oft, and in such situation, that he conld not possi (_}r ave o1 ¢ so.
‘I'he man who went to the woman in the night l.ms only ye:tci' al), 13 rep }L
a question I asked him on the subjgct, said that what .he most‘ ]_Z' u:a_rI “dstlf 0(;
the groaning of a dying woman. That the law sanctions such punis 1mcf:‘n
such an oftence, and” under such circumstances, is a thing too outrageous 01;1 an
instant to be helieved ; and 1 feel assured such a thing cannot be sanctione Ilu
a Chyistian land. Lastly, the.argument about the woman l(llo;:_ bemigl in} t tc
family way is good for nothing ; thut she is so I feel p'(.z;rund{(: rotlln.a" ‘uutl]\]:
heard; but if she ultimately proved not to be so, it will ma c]no hing i t
Master's favour. The case rests upon. this foundation : Iin't e e]ntr)lr in '1e
Admission Book it was proved that the woman was admitted dmtodtt]e blouse 1;15:
a pregnant woman, six inonths gunc;.aud she was nIS(; COIli“sl e::f: ) .olde'l s:or d).'
every one, the medical man never having stat(;d her to he otherw lstl’ .tn g cord-
ingly as such she should have been treated. - May I be lf]?]'m'lt}e ; o lreg 1;1 £
conversation 1 had a few days ago with a master of a workhouse v.fm 1 fcn'
20 years in the 1st Royal Dragoons, and had llc.ld the ?ltu.atw'nto‘ b[:ayl?agter;
serjeant, and acting paymaster. ¢ Pray do you manage tlc,ll]ll‘ld ei} ¥ tslfln Itiln yi.f
—No, I could manage 1,000 without severity. How do you lirumat; em; \
sentenced to 12 or 24 howrs' sqh.tary conﬁnement‘, do_ you 'ec(lll- ' 1em 1}11 v
night 2—No, not even men, hut (lm'de the 12 hours llll(;} lIltO']f.“ :;)d ay 's, s:&: 10:}1;;
a day, and the 24 into three days, eight hours a da:\,'. uf w li:l Od%' olu 0 (R; th
the women *—1I never have put in a womnan except for the most rezlxv u c(tm et
and then only by day, the cells being too damp in such recent y-constructe
ildi Y : night to any one. What would you think of con-
buildings for confinement l’) nig y hat » you thlnk of Son-
fining a woman in a state of pregnancy for 24 hours in the mo 2

—1 should consider if I did it that I should deserve next day to be turned out
of my place. What would you do to a woman for striking another, and using

abusive language 2—1 should make her stond at the head of" th\({r;h'r;nﬁl: ﬂt‘a!"ﬂe;‘-,
confess her fanlt, and cat drly bread and drink (:91(1 water.” W ia i te;;ant
treatment is this to that complainéd of!” In conclusion, _gcnt]emer_l,_ répea 1‘9.(i
a more cruel, inhumnan ease than Cn‘llgtt's scilrcely ever, in my Ov["]llmqr'l’ Q(:lcm‘l'}:ﬁ
in these Christian days, in which opinion 1 feel persuaded you wi CO]E]C’I et }ﬂ_n
me. If the present Poor Law system be based on mercy m}’d hll‘Il]‘ﬂl.'l:t)r,. lll q}yl
last and prove a blessing to'the land ; i on severity and harshmess, lﬂm . 4301}
fall to pieces, and the cries of the poor and oppressed will eulflzr 1111't0 ! e Ed.l!::b(:']_.
the Lord of Sabaotli, and bring down heiwy juidgments on t-lf.‘. dlm".B :la %
just reecived the accompnanying paper, No. 5, from the cIer}i to the Board df
‘Guardians.  What is stated in the resolution respecting the M Etist'ers nu.aappnj,;
hension of the insiructions of _tlm Assxsfnnﬁ Poor Lm}' Comml'asloner,. 'ISdIIIO:.-
plausible and altogether false, since 1 know'as a fact that%e ni‘d er'tecglt'; :3“'1':1:%
instrctions whatever on the matter in question .from hi _r.q: e)t,] “l(,cmsions
knowleuge I went to the performance of my cl?ricnlldufslle‘:, onti 1(3.15“3 (;\-hich
referred to.  Mr. Adey addressed to me note, No. G, on't 101‘1 '::e]—o&_lt 1 c(ﬂ which
case I purpose putting into the ltands of one who m!l dea ‘!‘) ith 1 11'1 :tli?'r ;}t d] r
way); but why only two charges out of 13 have lnther;o izclu fm‘e.,tﬁis gn?m-
cannot tell.  And now, gentlemen, I would only :}dd,Itlmt'_ l)a\g -l‘nth 'tlth‘-‘;ye
acted altogether from a prineiple ?f duty in e\'erylhmg. la]\ eﬁ t{ oulff ; ! ::vith e
never had any personal ill fecling towards, nor'nnls;um _t_:r;.: .mlu':uﬁ. ‘:l‘_m e
- Master, during the 18 monthis I have been C].mpln.m‘z 'CCI?'TIDIH'::) helntbrin"n _;;nn-
my own province and sphere of duty, :\:n(l not 1utel‘lclmg1 wi ltln-t.; Inb “-}’,u[fi
forward the charges 1 have, 1 co.ucm\'_ed I was qnly ( ‘(_)mgl mr \\1 - would
deserve the thanks of-all the guardians, instead of incurring t 1e displeasure ¢
I 1.
hatred of some of then ——
i | Fowell Walls, :

(signed) ¢ Chaplain to Bath Union,

No.18.

No. 15.
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18 PROCEEDINGS ON THE CONDUCT OF THE MASTER

— No. 1}, —
First Enclosure to No. 13.

To the Assistant Poor Law Commissioner.

26 January 1839,
v Tue Chaplain to the Bath Union begs leave to hand in the following charges,
against the Master and Mistress of the Bath Workhouse, to the Assistant Poor
Law Commissioner now in Bath for the purpose of investigating charges pre-
ferred against the said Master of the Bath Workhouse.

1. That Mr. Lawrence, the Master of the Bath Worklhouse, has been guilty
of many acts (and several of these quite recent ones) of the most tyrannical
oppression and cruelty towards the immates of the houses, '

2, That Mrs. Lawrence has grossly insulted the Chaplain for faithfully dis.
charging his duties, _

3. That Mr. Lawrence has been very deficient in the just and impartial
discharge of the duties of his office, confining for 2.1 hours a pregnant woman
for a trifling offence, and letting drunkenness go unpunished. '

4. That Mr. Lawrence, on the 25th ultime, refused the Chaplain admittance
into the workhouse, notwithstanding he (the Chaplain) stated his object in
demanding it to be the visiting of the sick, and Lis Iaving come with the
knowledge of the Assistant Commissioner.

31 January.

In forwarding these charges to the Poor Law Commissioner the Chaplain
thinks it better to state a few of the cases of oppression alleded to in charge 1.

1. The throwing down headlong in one of the yards a poor female eripple,
because she did not go quite fast cnough, or advanced with some reluctance to
the confinement cell. ,

2. The having two of the working paupers commitied to the police guard-
house for warming their hands, according to an existing and permitted prac-
tice, for two or three minutes, during bitterly cold weather, while employed on
very cold work.

3. The keeping these men 24 hours without a mouthful of food,

4. The cursing at a man who was under medical treatmant for legs so pain-
fully swollen from walking that he could scarely stand on them, because he was
work, and saying, “ I'll be damn’d if you shall cat if you do not work,” and
accordingly stopping the man’s meat.

— No., 15. —
Second Enclosure to No. 13.

Reverend Sir, White Hart, Bath, 23 Jan. 1839,

Wirn reference to the charge against the Master of the Bath Workhouse, of
an alleged false oath, I beg to state that I am clearly of opinion it would be
improper for me to examine into it. : .

The offence should be investigated and dealt with by the ordinary legal tri-
bunals of the country.

I have, &e.

The Rev. C. F. Watts. Gsigned)  D. G- Adey.

—DNo. 18. =

Third Enclosure to No. 13,

1. WouLp you not say that the confinement of any woman without a bonnet
or cloak, or a shawl, or in a small damp cell (i, e. the walls running with water),
without even a handful of straw in it, in the latter part of the month of Novem.

lier,
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ber, for the space of 24 hours, during which period she had nothing to take
but dry bread and cold water, would most probably lead to evil consequences ?
—1 think such confinement would endanger the health of anyone. G. IWallis.
2. Would you not, as a medical man, consider such confinement under such
circumstances, nuch to be deprecated and most unjustifiable 7—1 do. G. V.
3. If a womaun so confined and so treated, shortly afier her quitting the cell
at the expiration of 24 hours (when she spent an hour in a warm laundry) became
extremely ill, being seized with such dreadful shivering for three hours, that
although wrapped up in several blankets and a heated flannel petticoat around.
her body, ler teeth chattered in her head, and these shiverings followed by a
violent flooding ; would you mnot censider such illness to arise from lher con-
finement in the cold ccfl under the circumstances alluded to?—I certainly

should, qG.w.
4, Doe= not long exposure to damp and cold as deseribed, very generally
occasion such attack 7—Yes, G. .

- 5. Would yon not say, that the confinement of a woman, six months gone in

the family way, under the above-mentioned eircumstances, would be most liable

to be attended with very disastrous and serious consequences >—1I certainly should.
G. IV,

6. Would you not consider the act of a man who, when applied to at7
o'clock in the evening (when it began to grow bitterly cold with irost, or even
if there were no frost) at the scagon of the year above stated, to let the woman
out for the night, refused to do so, an act of the greatest inhumanity and
barbarity 7—Undonbtedly. G v -

7. Would you not declare such confinement to a pregnant woman, or even to
one reputedly so under the above-mentioned circumstances, unspeakably im-
proper and cruel; and would you say any defence or apology could be made for
such confinement?—Such conduct is indefensible. G. IV,

" 8, If such pregnant woman were seized with illness, such as is abovemen-
tioned, shortly after her release from the cell, at the expiration of the 24 hours,
would you not believe the attack to arise from such confinement 7—No doubt I
should. '
G. Wallis, M. p., DBristol,
Physician to the Bristol Infirmary, &e.

My opinion having been requested on the above questions I can have no
difficulty in stating, that such conduct towards any poor individual is perfectly
unjustifiable, and would be more than likely to be attended by serious con-

sequences.
J. Howell, ». p.,

Bristol, 29 January 1839, Physician to the Bristol Infirmary,

I certainly coincide with the opinions expressed by Drs. Wallis and Howell.
N. Smith, Surgeon,

1. L. Morgan,

Surgeon to the Bristol Infirmary.

29 J:muary 1839,

29 January 1839.

I concur generally in the opinions expressed above.

James F. Barnard, m, p.,
Yellow of the Royal College of Physicians,

J. A. Symonds, M. »., _
Physician to the Dristol General Hospital.

1 fully concur in the opinions above expressed.
Wm. Henry Tryer, Surgeon,

Bath, 31 January 1839, H. 1. Medical Staff.

It is my decided cpinion that the treatment in the preceding case has been

cruel in the extreme, and caleulated to lead to the above consequences,
Charles Greville, m. p.

Bath, 1 February 1839,
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The satisfaction (although mixed with pain) the Chaplain feels in obtaining
the above signaturcs, arises from the civeumstance that the questions are not
mere hypothetical ones, but questions altogether dedueible from evidence, and
founded on fact.  1lis object 10 putting the woman Collett’s case in the above
ql!cs_tions in two forms, will, of course, be abundantly obvious to the Com-
missioners.

— No. 17.

Fourth Enclosure to No. 13.

Si, Bath, Saturday Lvening, 26 January.

It is with pain, 1 observe, that 1 feel T have great and just cause for complaint
at not having been permitted, this afternoon, to call upen a very material wit-
ness, who was one of the men that went to the woman Collett in the night, and
wlho would have stated what would, in my estimation, have been very much to
the point; viz., that the cries he heard were not those of anger or passion,
but the heart-rending lamentations of one in deep distress ; of a poor afflicted
wretch, half perished, pleading for merey, piereingly erying alowd for pity and
compassion, whose language, when addressed, was, “ Oh, I am lalf dead, 1 shall
perish befere the morning, do go and ask to have me let out.” 1 cannot but add,
that those facilities have not been afforded me for the eliciting of the truth, and
the accomplishment of the ends of justice, that 1 had reason to look for, while
faithfully performing my trying and painful duties. I have the fullest assurance
that some of the witnesses have been tampered with, which must have been
evident to all. The Lord knows that I have acted, myself, with the most un-
blemished integrity and uprightness. I may have been chafed at times, but that
is not fo be wondered at, seeing and hearing all 1 did.  You little know what

‘passed at my side throughout the whole proceedings. I should be glad to have

the case of Collett submitted to the opinion and decision of any body of medical
men. I beg to send the accompanying papers, and am
Sir, &e,

To D. G. Adey, Esq. (signed) C.F IV,

— No, 18, —
Tifth Enelosure to No. 13.

Bath Union.

Reverend Sir, . Abbey-street, 31 January 1839,

I ax directed to forward to youn a copy of a resolution, unanimously adepted
at a meeting of the Board of Guardians of this Union, held yesterday :—-

“ That with reference to the charge inserted in the Chaplain's report, ¢ that
the Master of the Workhouse had refused the Chaplain admission to the work-
house, on Triday the 25th and Saturday the 206th,” the Board are of opinion
that the Governor appears to have acted under a mis-apprehension of the instruc-
tions of the Poor Law Commissioners, and though the Governor may have con-
sidered himsclf justified in refusing admission, under the peculiar circumstances
of the inquiry then pending, the transaction does, upon the face of it, evinee a
line of conduct of which the Board disapproves, and a principle they cannot
sanction.” :

I have, &e.

Rev. C. . Watts, (signcd) C. Brown, Clerk,
Chaplain to the Bath Union.

PP
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— No. 19. —

Sixth Enclosure to No, 13,

Reverend Sir, Bath, Sunday Evening, 27 January 1839.

1 nave to acknowledge the receipt of your note of yesterday evening. If you
think I have in any way misconducted the inquiry on Collett's case, it is open for
you to complain to the Commissioners, who will give your representations every

attention.
With respect to the further charges against the Master, enclosed in your note,

I desire to state that, taking into consideration all the circumstances, 1do not
feel mysclf authorized to investigate them without the dircetions of the Commis-
sioners ; 1 therefore return them to you, that you may forward them to the

Cominissioners if you think proper.
I am, &e.

To the Chaplain (signed)  D. G. Adey.
of the Bath Union Workhouse.

-_ No. 20. —_

Cory of a REPORT from Mr. Adey to the Poor Law Commissioners.

Bath Union :—Inquiry into the Conduct of the Master of the Workhouse.

Gentlemen, Sherborne, 3 February 1839.
I rerurx herewith the several documents connected with this inquiry, having

reason to believe that the charges in 271 C. remaining undisposed of by me, — g7 o, 7
See No. 1.,

were, in substance, the same as those contained in 10989 C., and that they had

1 Enclosure.

therefore already been investigated by the Board of Guardians, as explained in Sez No. 3.

270 C. 1 addressed a letter to the Board of Guardians on the subject, request-
ing to be informed whether or not my supposition was correct, and if so, whe-
ther they wished a further investigation to be made by me. I have this morn-
ing received the annexed letter from the clerk, which will not only show you th_e
opinion of the Board of Guardians as to the particular charges to which it
applies, but also their strong, and I may say nearly unanimous, opinion of the
c]:argcs in general. _

I am, &e.

(signed)  D. G. Adey.

— No 21.—

Fuclosure to No. 20.

~ Sir, Bath Union, Abhey-sireet, 31 January 1839,

In reply to your letter of the 28th instant, addressed to the Board of Guardians
of this Union, I am directed to forward to you the following extract from the
minates of their procecdings at their weekly meeting held yesterday :—

“ Ttezolved unanimously,

« That Mr. Adey, Assistant Poor Law Commissioner, having addressed a letter
of the 28th Jan. to the Board, and the Board having taken into their consideration
the several charges referred to by the Assistant Poor Law Commissioner, are of
opinion that they are gencrally but of trivial importance, and most of them of a
frivolons and vexatious character (as many of the charges made against the
Governor upon this lengthened inquiry appear to be), founded merely upon
hearsay, or sundry and very unsatisfactory cvidence, and partaking much of the
nature and description of those which were disproved on investigation, and for
these reasons the Board fully concur in the views of the Assistant Poor Law
Commissioner, and deem it unnecessary to institute a further inquiry therein.”

: I am, &e.
To D. G. Adey, Esq., (signed) €. Brown, Clerk.

Assistant Poor Law Commissioner. .

¢3
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— No. 92, —
Cory of a REPORT from Mr. /Veale to the oor Law Commissioners,

Reporr on certain Charges brought against Mr. Lawrenee, the Master of the
Workhouse of this Union,

Gentlemen, Bath Union, 9 February 1839.

I nave read over with the greatest care and attention Mr. Adey’s reports, and
the evidence in the cases ahove referred to, together with Mr, Watts’s letter to you,
dated the 1st instant,

On the charge against Mr. Lawrence for having criminal intercourse with Mary
Hewett, I really de not fecl called on.to make any other comment than that it is
totally unsupported by any corroborative evidence, and that the fact of his men-
tioning the report in circulation so long back as April last to one of the visiting
guardians is strongly indicative of his innocence. (See Evidence of Mr. Hammett.)

As to the charge against Lawrence for confining Rebecea Collett for 24 hours
in the black hole, I must confess that I think such a mode of punishment to any
female highly improper; but more especially in a case where the party was
reported as being pregnant 5 but it is clear from the entry made by Lawrence in
the Conduct Book that he only considered he was perfornting his duty ; and from
the evidence of the vice-chairman, Mr. Battsford, it appears the Board was of
the same opinion, by sanctioning the proceeding.

The evidence as to the effect of the punisliment, and as to the fact of the preg-
nancy of the woman, is so conflicting, that | cannot venture to give any opinion
on these points; but I would most respectfully sugzest that your Board should
express a decided opinion that no female in a state of pregnancy should be con-
fined during the night in the refractory ward, and that in all cases where it is
necessary to confine any pauper in that place that proper bedding and covering
should be supplicd to them. .

I feel it due to Mr. Lawrence that I shonld state to you that I have known
him well for several ycars, and that previous to the passing of the Poor Law
Amendment Act he was for about two years employed in the parish of Midhurst,
in which 1 then resided, as Master of the Workfmuse and assistant overscer.
From the interest 1 took at that period in parochial affairs very few days clapsed
that I was not brought in contact with him, and it never fell to my lot to meet
with a better officer, or a man of more correct deportment,

On the formation of the Midhurst Union he was unanimously elected Governor
of the Workhouse of that Union, and which situation he quitted only in conse-
quence of the guardians during the second yéar wishing to decrease his salary.
He has been at the Bath Union from its commencement, as Governor of the
Workhouse, and during the period that that Union was under my superin-
tendence, 1 never had the most distant cause to alter the high opinion I had
previously formed of his character and ability,

Mr. Lawrence was formerly a pay-sergeant in the artillery ; and on his election
to his present office he produeed tire most flattering testimonials, not only from
his superior officers in the army, but from every place in which he liad been an
inhabitant since his discharge.

As Mr. Watts in his letter hefore referred to has cast some reflections on the
conduct of Mr. Gore, the medical ofticer, I feel called on to Temark that there is
not @ general practitioner in Bath who stands higlicr either in private or pro-
fessional life in the estimation of the profession and the public at large than that
gentleman ; to me he is almost a stranger, and it is on the authority of some of

- L4 - -
the leading medical men that I venture to make this asscrtion,

I have, &c.

(signed) Robert Weale,
Assistant Poor Law Commiissioner.

it e e t e
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— No. 23,

Cory of a LETTER from the Rev. C. F. IVaits to the Poor Law Commissioners.

Nelson-place, Norfolk-crescent, Batli,
Gentlemen, 9 February 1839.

Ix reply to a note, dated Sherborne 4th February 1839, transmitted {o me by
you fromn Mr. Adey, containing a cormnunication from the clerk to the Bath
Union, to the effect that the charges against the Master of the Workhouse re-
maining uninvestigated vequire not Mr. Adey’s investigation, 1 would observe,
that the fresh series of charges, duted January 26tl, which I sent you on Satur-
day last, against the said Master of the Bath Union Workhouse; accompanied by
arequest that Mr. Adey may be instrueted to inquire into them, have never been
laid before the Board of Guardians, and consequently that the clerk’s commu-
nication has no reference to them. 1 am sure, therefore, you will sce the pro-
priety of Mr. Adey’s investigating them.

1 am, &e.
(signed) C. Fowell Walts,
Chaplain to the Bath Union.

— No. 24, —
Cory of a LETTER from the Poor Law Commissioners to the Clerk of the

Bath Union.

Poor Law Commission Office, Somerset House, .
Sir, 12 February 1839, .
T'ne Poor Law Commissioners have had under their consideration the several

charges brought against Mr. Lawrence, the Master of the Workhouse of the -

Bath Union, which were examined into by Mr. Adey on the 26th ultimo. )

Vith respect to the charge that Mr. Lawrence had criminal intercourse with
Mary Hewett, the Commissioners, in the absence of all corroborative e\'idenqe
in support of Mary Hewett's statement, cannot consider that the charge is
proved. _ ) )

The Commissioners conceive that in forming their opinion on this case they
must be guided by the practice of the criminal courts in cases of rape, and
by the expressed views of the Legislature as to the evidence necessary in bas-
tardy cases. :

The Commissioners feel it due to Mr. Lawrence to add, that they think the
fact of his having mentioned the report as in eirculation as far back as April
last, to one of the visiting guardians, Mr. Hammett, is an indication of his inno-
cence which ought not to be disregarded, i

With reference to the charge of confining Rebecea Collett for 24 hours in the
refractory ward, the Commissioners must observe that it seems to them to be
very doubtful whether she was pregnant, or whether her health was serionsly
aftected by this punishment.

The Commisstoners, however, are of opinion that as she was entered on her
admission into the workhouse as pregnant, and there was no- distinct proof. of
her not being in that condition, it was improper to confine her in the refractory
ward during the night; and still more improper to omit to supply her with
proper bedding and covering, which should in all cases be provided for those
whom it may be advisable thus to confine during the night. L.

The Commissioncrs entertaining no doubt that this expression of their opinion
will prevent the recurrence of any similar circumstance, do not deem it neces-
sary to take any ulterior steps as regards this ease. _

As regards the charge made against the Master of the Workhouse, of appto-
priating a sovercign belonging to a pauper, Webb Bates, at the time of his
decease, it does not appear to the Connnissioners that the delay in paying it
over to the parish officer affords adequate ground for supposing that it was dis-
honestly withheld. )

489, C 4 Since

No. 14.
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Since the receipt of the evidence on these charges, the Commissioners have
received a communication from Mr, Watts, the Chaplain to the Union, a copy
of which they transmit {o the guardias for their information.  The Comuus-
sioners are well aware that, in requiring an_investigation to take place into the
several charges of oppression, us stated by Mr, Watts in the memorandum sent
by that gentleman to Mr. Adey, on the 6th ultimo, they are inconvenicutly
occupying the time of the guardians and of their Assistant Commissioner, but
these charges having been deliberately made by the gentleman holding the im-
portant office of Chaplain to the werkhouse, the Commissioners do not perccive
any satisfactory alternative open to them, by means of which an examination
into those charges can be avoided.

Mr. Adey will, therefore, communicate with the guardians of the Bath Union,
and will fix as early an opportunity for going inlo this subject as the other public
demands on his time will permit; and he will, at the same time, examine into
the complaint msde by the Chaplain of his having been grossly insulted by
Mrz, Lawrence. -

(Signed by order of the Bourd-,)
E. Chadwick, Secretary.

— No. 25, —
Cory of a LETTER from the Rev. C. F. Wails to the Poor Law Commissioners.

Gentlemen, . . " 4, Nelson-place, Bath,
1 wust apologize for again troubling you, which 1 should not do had
it not. occurred to me that I had omitted things in my last letter I should not

" have done. In stating to you the communication that had taken place between

myself and the guardians, since the investigation of charges by Mr. Adey, 1
omitted one I felt it my duty to make to them a few weeks since, and which,
probably only displeased them.

“ g the Board of Guardians, &ec., &c.—Gentlemen, 1 consider it incumbent
upon me to make you acquainted with what 1 casually learnt a few days ago,
from a conversation that passed in my hearing, between two men who had evi-
dently heard of the sovercign case; viz., that the sovereign for which Mr. Law-
rence it appears in no way accounted until a few weeks since, came into Mr.
I..’s possession in the latter part of the year 1836, the period at which the pauper
died to whom it helonged.”

Lought, too, tohavegiven you,in full, iny reply totheproposal mademe toresign::

« To the Board of Guardiuns, &e. &e.—The Chaplain of the Union begs to
inform the Board of Guardians, that he cannot think of resigning his present
office, feeling, as he does, that he has never at any time done anything pre-

judicial to, but, on the contrary, ever studiously consulted the best interests of -

the Union. With respect to the circumstances attendant upon, amd commected
with, the récent investigation before the Assistant Commissioner, the Chaplain
begs leave to state, that in the last interview he had with the Assistant Commis-
sioner, at the complete close of the proceedings, he received from him the
following testimony in his favour: ¢ Mr. Watts, I have no fault whatever to find
with you. 1was certainly much grieved to sec the bad spirit evineed towards you
without any eause, and Iugain and again told the guardians that you were not tobe
blamed for anything you had done, for that you had only performed your duty.’

“ Mr. Watts takes this opportunity of observing, that it is Mr. Lawrence who
is injuring the best interests of the Union, if, by the best interests of the Union,
is meant the welfare of the poor, since there are at the present moment two poor
women lying afflicted with sickness, the eilects of Mr. Lawrence’s unfeeling and
%:}'u.cl cgnduct, or, as some may say, consideration of the best interests of the

nion.

And now 1 would first say a few words in connexion with the above re-
ply. Surely that man must be considered to consult the best interests of any
system who endeavours to correct abuses, which only can be done by making
those abuses known ; and he it is who is injuring those interests whois the daily
practiser of abuses; and here I would observe, that it is impossible to say Low
pad is the oduitr that attaches to the Bath Union, in conzequence of the tyranny

and
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and oppression of the Master and Mistress of the Workhouse. I have spoken of
two women having been made ill by the excrcise of this tyranny. The case of
one of the two I will take the liberty of giving, in as few words as possible.
First, hlowever, it will be necessary to state, that throughout the winter, 10 or 15
women at a time have been employed, from morning till evening, in an extremely
cold outhouse, without a bit of fire in it, at picking oakum; the woman in
question, having upon her a prolapsus uleri, from a bad confinement, told Mr.
Lawrence, in inclement weather, that Mr. Gore, the medical man, had said she
should not expose herself to the cold, nor stay, at any time, in a old place; to
which, she says, he replied, that he neither cared for Mr. Gore or any other
medical man, and if she did not go along and work, she should not eat. The
carly part of last month, during bitterly severe weather, the poor creature, feel-
ing erself very cold and unwell, went into a ward to warm herself, when she
was driven out by the Master, and, in a day or two after, was taken very ill,
with cold and fever, into a sick ward, where she continued for, I think, about
three weeks, the nurses, and all about ler in the ward, replying, upon my ask-
ing what was the matter, that it was cold and fever, arising from being kept in
the oakum shop without a bit of fire. Several women have been known to say,
they were so benumbed with cold, that they could scarcely rise from their seats,
or move their limbs, Now, how casily may all this evil and misery have been
remedied, by just putting a stove in the place, which the Master seems to think
would have ﬁecn too great a luxury for the poor creatures. With many apolo-
gies for taking up so much of your time, I beg to subscribe myself, gentlemen,
Yours, &e.
(signed) C. Fowell IValts.

P. S.—Since writing the above, I have been perfectly astounded at casually
hearing that the chief cause assigned by the guardians for my suspension, has
been my having been reported by the Master to have created, among some of the
women, agpirit of insubordination. Now, if it is meant intentionally so, by word,
or anything else, 1 reply, a more wicked calumny and fulseheod could not pos-
sibly be uttered ; or, if even unintentionally so, owing to circumstances, I would
reply, itis a picce of cunning sophistry, and that if insubordination exist, or has
existed among them, which I never before heard of, it is altogether owing to
the oppression and tyranny I have in part aliuded to. I have, myself, not been
into their ward, except for two seconds with a friend, since the investigation,
although I feel they need so much my visits. I have also understood that a
memorial, teeming with the offences and misconduct 1 have been guilty of, has
heen sent you by the guardians, but what those oftences ave, I am qpite at a
loss to conjecture, being perfectly ready, as L am, to submit my conduct in every
particular, since 1 have been Chaplain, to the judgment and decision of any im-
partial body of men well acquainted with circumstances.

March 4, Thursday Evening.

Note.—This letter was referred to Mr. Adey on the 25th of April.

— No. 26.—

Cory of a LETTER from the Rev. C. I°. Walls to the Poor Law Commissioners.

Gentlemen, 4, Nelson-place, Bath.

I Take the liberty of again addressing you, to request you to have the polite-
ness to inforin me whethier it is or not your good pleasure to take any notice of
the papers I sent you some weeks since. I have within the last few days heard
of Mr. Adey having been again in Bath, but I did not hear of his having done
anything in the matter of the charges against the Master of the Workhouse here.
Allow me to add, that of course not the shadow of a doubt can possibly rest upon

the minds of any honest and impartial men as to the guilt of the Master of the
489. D Workhonse
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Workhouse in the immorality case that was investigated, 1 mean the case of
Mary Hewett. - '
I beg to suberibe myself, &,

(signed)

N. B. 1 should have observed that T have received no kind of communication
from the Board of Guardians since I last addressed you.

8 March 1839. C. I, Watits,

Note.—This letter was referred to Mr. Adey on the oth of March.

— No. 27. —

Cory of a LETTER from the Rev, C. F. Watts to the Poor Law Commissioners.

Gentlemen, 4, Nelson-place, Bath.

I a3 sorry to be obliged again to trouble you, which I do for the purpose of

informing you of the.mamner in which the Guardians have acted towards me,
and in order that you may the better understand this, it will be necessary to go
back a little.  On the 20th of December last I was requested to be present at a
meeting of the Board, when I was questioned respecting the attendance of the
Master of the Workhouse at Divine worship; and afterwards 1 was asked if I
knew anything against him; to which I replied I had heard several things, if
hearzay statements would do, when I was requested to send them into the Board
in the shape of charges. This I accordingly did in two scrics of charges, and
subsequently I sent yourselves a third serics, as you know. Ever since the late
investigation by Mr. Adey, I hesitate not to affirm that the conduct of the Master
has been most oppressive and improper. There is lying extremely ill at the
present time a poor woman, the victim of his cruel tyranny, as I have stated to
the guardians; and I have a short time since been obliged to make the following
entries in the Chaplain’s Book :

* March 2. Two girls, who have been associates of bad characters, if not bad
characters themselves, have latcly heen sent amongst the school children, and are
in the habit of using most improper language among them.”

Tiie above entry was seen by the Board on the Gth, when by an entry of the
chairman, it was requested that I would report the names of tflc young women
alluded to.

* March 9. The names of the young women above alluded to are Sarak Pearce
and Mary Banks; and most grieved do I feel that they should still be permitted to
associate with the school children, considering as I do every hour of such inter-
course to be fraught with danger to the morals and general principles of the
children. Why they were sent among them I cannot imagine. Surely the
person that did this ought to have been aware that evil consequences (us I find
has been the case) would be most likely to resnlt from such association.”

Having conversed with the schoolnistress after making the last entry, I felt it
my duty to write as follows :

“ gth. I am sorry to be obliged again to allude to the afore-mentioned young
women, whieh duty compels me to do. The schoolmistress had before only
spoken to me in the most general terms of their misconduct ; but what she has
just partially communicated (for delicacy would not perinit a more open and
complete diselosure) has perfectly shocked and horrified me. One lias been in
the habit of cursing and swearing among the children, and the other it appears
has done still worse; and how could anything better be expected, one having
been in the black ward, and the mother having kept, I understand, a house of ili
fame.” On the 11th these young women were removed, hut not until the
children’s morals had been most seriously injured through this very improper
proceeding of the master.  After having, gentlemen, not only of late, but upon
all oceasions, discharged my duty faithfully as unto God, and done nothing but
as an act of duty and in perfect conformity, asitappears to me, with your printed
regulations, and after having received the testimony of Mr. Adey that I had only
done my duty, T have to state, that on the 14th instant I reccived a request from the
Board of Guardians to resign my office, without assigning any other reason for this
strange
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ing ceding than a consideration for the best interests of the workhouse
Ztr::ll“ﬁ(:n]:;:) (g:;cncrcﬁly; a reason that perfectly astounded me, who for a year ﬂtld
nine months have given nearly all my time and strength to the spiritual mt((zlreats
of those committed to my care. Having replied to this request that I could not
think of resigning my charge, fecling as I did that I had never at any tlmle done
anything but with a view to the best interests of the Union, and that]t e onﬁ
wlho was injuring them was the Master of the house, I reccived on the 20t
instant the communication that I was suspended from my office, a procf.zcdla‘g
assuredly the most outragcous that ever was heard of, which nothing could justify
but conduct on my part of so flagrant a kind as would oblige the Bishop to stp{l
me of my gown, and which I feel convinced cannot for a moment mcetdW}t 1
your sanction. Since writing the above, I have thought it better to sen )0;1
the communications alluded to, as having been made tome on the 14th and 20th
jnstant ; and upon the word * unanimous” used in the last I would beg le:fv_e t(?
ohserve, that I know the Board to be much divided on the subject in _queatlgn;‘
it has been made quite a party matter by a great portion of the Board, instead o

justi d truth,
one of justice an I am, &o.

(signed) C. Fowell Waits.

P. S.—1 feel obliged by the acknowledgment of the receipt of my former
fetter through Mr. Adey, from whom 1 heard afew days ago.

23 Mareh 1839.

— No. 28, —
Enclosure to No. 27.

Reverend Sir, Bath Union, Abbey-street, 14 March 1839.

I ax directed to forward to you the following resolution, passed by the Board
of Guardians of this Union: Resolved, ¢ That from all the circumstances imme-
diately attendant upon and connceted with the recent investigation before the
Assistant Commissioner of certain charges brought against the Master of the
Workhouse by the Chaplain, the Board deem it to be both expedient and
necessary, for the best interests of the workhouse and of the Union generally,
that Mr. Watts should not be continued in the office of Chaplain; and they
trust that Mr, Watts will sce the propriety of yielding to the views of the Board,
and will avail himself of their expressed opinion on this subject to tender the
resignation of his office, and relicve the Board from any other more painful
alternative.”

I am, &e.

Rev. C. F. Watts, Chaplain (signed) C. Brown, Clerk.

Bath Union.

— No. 29, —

Cory of a LETTER from the Clerk of the Bath Union to the Poor Law
Comnissioners. :

Gentlemen, Bath Union, 29 March 1839.

I am directed by the Board of Guardians of this Union to forward to you the
accompanying report on the subject of the suspension of the Chaplain, adopted
at a meeting of the Board on Wednesday the 27th instant.

. I am, &e.

(signed) C. Brown, Clerk,
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— No. 30.—
Enelosure to No. 20.

Cory of a REPORT of a Committee of Guardians of the Bath Union.

Board Room, 23 March 1839,

Report of the committee appointed to draw up a report, to be forwarded to
the Poor Law Commissioners, upon the subject of the suspension of the Chaplain
of this Union.

Your Committee have agreed to the following report, which they submit for
the approval and adoption of the Board :

& 'l'he Board of Guardians of the Bath Union having, in the exercise of the
powers vested in them by the 31st scetion of the workhouse regulations, deemed
it necessary to suspend the Chaplain of their Union from the duties of his office,
they now proceed to state the causes that have compelled them to adopt this
measure; and while they regret the necessity for ocenpving the time and atten-
tion of the Commissioners in stating those causes at some length, such i3 the
nature, extent, and influence of the combined circumstances which have led to
it, the importance of the subject to the interests of the Union generally, and in
Justification of their own proceedings, the Board feel called upon to enter into
a full and explicit detail of this affair.

*“ During a period of one year and five months from the Chaplain’s first
appointment, up to the time at which charges were preferred against the Master
of the Workhouse by Mr. Hewett, it does not appear that the Chaplain made any
complaint against the Master, or even impugned his conduct; but on the inves-
tigation of the charges referred to, the Claplain was produced to prove the

-absence of the Master during the perforinance of Divine service in the house.

The following extract is taken from the minutes of the Chaplain’s evidence on
that occaston.

- ¢ If I saw any improper proceedings in the workhouse, I should think it my

.duty to inform the Board. I have seen nothing in the conduct of the Governor,
-schoolmistress, or other officer in the house, which I have thought it my duty to
.Teport to the Board.

“ The Chaplain subsequently explained, that though he knew nothing impro-

_perin the conduct of the Master of his own knowledge, he had been informed by

the inmates of the house of many acts of gross misconduct on his part. The
Board, however, declined to entertain new charges, having no relation to those

.then under consideration, and brought to their knowledge for the first time in

this unexpected and indircet manner, but suggested that the Chaplain should
prefer them in a formal and official manner ; and accordingly two lists of charges,
13 in number, were preferred at different times. But the roceedings upon
these charges being fully known to and approved of by the Commissioners, it
would be unnecessary for.the Board to advert to themn; were it not that they fect
bound to record the expression of their regret and strong disapprobation of the
personally acrimonious spirit manifested Dby the Chaplain towards the Master,
in the prosccution of these charges; a spinit little in aceordance with the eha-
racter and oflice of a Christian minister, and displaying an excess of irascibility
and intemperance indicative, in the opinion of the Board, of a total absence of
all mental control and government.

“ The nature and character of these charges, as well as of those preferred by
Mr. Hewett, and the sources from whenee they emanated, gave to them, in the
first jnstance, a very doubtful and questionable hue; but the result of their
mvestigation by the Assistant Poor Law Commissioner, at least of all those of a
criminatory nature, has been cxculpatory of the conduct and character of the
Master, and quite satisfactory to the Board; but it would not appear to have

- been equally satisfactory to the prejudiced mind of the Chaplain, who, by pre-

ferring another list of charges; still in abeyance (differing though they may in
form and words, yet similar in origin and character fo those already disposed
of), continucs fo evinee a rancorous feeling towards the Master wholly undi-
minished.

“ These hostile proceedings and personal animositics are productive of much
discomfort and great perplexity to the Master, in the execution of his important

and

- the Chaplain’s course, as the same omission was continued at the
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and responsible duties; ave fostering a spirit of discord, and producing collisions
between the officers of the establishment, by exciting party feeling; imposing
upon the Board irksome and painful additional labour, by the recurrence of
weekly appeals to them, arising out of this tllscm:dant state of t!uugs ; tgndl.ng
to neutralize the authority of the Master, and tacitly encourage insubordination
and a spirit of combination among the dissolute and refractory inmates of the
house (with whom, almost exclusively, have originated all thie charges against
the Master). These combined and momentous evils have led the Board to con-
sider it both expedient and necessary for the well-being of the Union, that the
Chaplain should be discontinued in his oﬁice_; and unde_r this conviction the
Board adopted a resolution (Appendix A.) calling upon him to resign; but as
some few individual guardians were averse to carrying it into immediate exceu-
tion, considering that it would be premature to act thereon until proceedings
upon the charges still in abeyance had been taken, the resolution was for the
moment suspended ; but though the Board agreed to its momentary suspension,
their opinion of the Chaplain’s incompetency and unfitness for his office, and
their conviction of the utter impossibility of the Master’s carrying on his duties
at the workhouse with advantage 1o the Union, or with efficieney or satisfaction
to himself, while the Chaplain remained, was wholly unch'fmged. _
On the usual board-day, three weeks after the procgcdmgs above rgferred to,
it was intimated for the first time by one of the gufn-dmns, to \.vhom it becarr.le
accidentally known, that the Chaplain had, since his first appointment, been in
the constant habit of omitting what appeared to the Board to be an important
part of his clerical duties; namely, that part of the Communion Service appro-
priated to the Sunday morning service of the church. The Chaplain attended
personally at the Board the succeeding Wednesday to answer to the allegation;
he admiited the fact, and subsequently offercd some reasons for the omission;
but this interference on the part of the Board, it seems, effected no change in
subsequent

Sunday's service at the house, - . . . _

When before the Board upon the subject of the omission of his duty above
referred to, the Chaplain made some complaints of the conduct of the Master
and Matron, hut which were not of that importance to require the further inter-

“ference of ‘the Board at that time; especially characterized as they were by that

spirit of animosity and invidious feeling engendered by former proceedings.
But, with the desire to prevent the recurrence of similar personal differences and

- heart-burnings, which would scem to arise in some mieasure from what appeared

to the Board to be a mistaken view of the extent of his privileges and the nature
of his duties, the chairman took occasion to point out his views (in which the
Board fully concurred) of the nature and extent of the Chaplain’s duties, ar;d
of the privileges that devolved upon him in_their performance. Tei_mcmctlls y
adhering, however, to the detail of his-cqmplmnts, the Chaplain continue Yto
occupy the time and interfere with the business of the Board to a most ;ncon;ei-
nient length by his prolix and desultory statements, unconnected altogether \\1t;' ‘
the objeet for which he attended; to all of which the Board (with _tlle view o
obviating the evils of a lengthened controversy to-which they had on several
.former occasions Leen exposed) avoided any reply, and it was only at the repeated
but courtcous interventions of some of the guardiaus that le withdrew when
lle'i‘]ll:lls dereliction of what seemed to the Board to be an important part of the
Chaphin’s clerical dutics, added to the perpetnal - discord and hostile co‘lhsnm}
thus weekly and almost daily manifested, seriously aflecting the well-being o
the workhouse, induced the Board to carry into execution the suspended resolu-
tion, which was communicated (Appendix B.) to_tl}c Chaplain m:ccn_'dmgly‘.:i .

The subsequent board-day brought the Chaplain’s reply (Appendix C.), 1 "3(: 1ln-
ing to accede to the views of the Board. But in addition to this rg)p ),f the
Board were perfectly astonished at the contents of « letter (Appendﬁc . 3 rom
the Chaplain to the chairman, which,” when communieated to the Board, t[l)ro-
duced one simultancous feeling of indignation, and led to the unanimous adop-
tion of a resolution (Appendix E.) of the Board then present, amoul}t;ngI in
number to 30, t¢ suspend the Chaplain from his office, which mt_.'as;‘ure,l \n(i h their
reasons for having done so, hereinbefore stated, they now transmit for the decision
of the Poor Law Commissioners thercon. :

(signed) G. H. Anderson. S. Barrow. Charles Batsford.
° T IV hitter. J. Campbell.

489. D3
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Appendix (A.)

Movenp by Captain Campbell, and seconded by Mr. Batrow :—

That from all the circumstances immediantely attendant upon and connected with the
recent investigation before the Assistant Poor Law Commissioner, of certain charges brought
against the Master of the Workhouse by the Chaplain, the Board deem it both {o be expe-
dient and necessary, for the best interests of the workhouse and of the Union generally, that
Mr. Watts should not be continued in the office of Chaplain; and they trust that Mr. Watts
will see the propriety of yielding to the views of the Board, and will“avail himself of their
expressed opinion on this subject, to tender the resignation of his office, and relieve the
Board from any other more painful alternative; but that the communication of this resolution
to Mr. Walts i;e suspendecP until the further determination of the Board. '

Appendix (B.)

Moven by Captain Campbell, and scconded by 8. Barrow, Esq.:—

That the Clerk be directed to communicate to the Chaplain the resolution of the Board
(13 February), containing their opinion as to the cxpediency of Mr. Watts tendering the
resignation of his office. :

Appendix (C.)

To the Board of Guardians of the Bath Union.

Tue Chaplain of the Union begs to inform the Board of Guardians that he cannot think
of resigning his office, feeling as he does that he has never at any time done anything preju-
dicial to, but, on the contrary, ever studiously considered ¢ the Dest interests of the Union.”
With respect to the circumstances immediately attendant upon and connected with the
recent investigation before the Assistant Commissioner, the Chaplain beas leave o state,
that in the last interview he had with the Assistant Commissioner, at the complete close of
the proceedings, he received from him the following testimony in lis favour: ¢ Mr. Watts,
I have no fault whatever to find with you; I was certainly much grieved to see the bad
spirit evinced towards yon without any cause, and I again fold the guardians that you were
not fo be blamed for anything you had done, for that you had enly performed your duty,”
Mr. Walts takes this opportunity of observing that it is Mr, Lawrence who is injuring ihe
best interests of the Union (if by the best interests of the Union is meant the welfare of the
poor), since there are at this present moment two poor women lying afilicted with sickness,
the effects of Mr. Lawrence’s unfeeling and cruel conduct, or as some may say, “ considera-
tion for the best interests of your Union,”

16 March 1839.

Appendix (D.)

Sir, 4, Nelson-place, Thursday Afternoon.

I caxnort help addressing you a few lines, in consequence of what passed at the Board
yesterday, expressive of the greatest surprise at the manner in which you expressed yourself,
after the conversation that passed between us at your own house a short time since. It is
very evident that you have allowed the Master of the Workhouse (who, it is clear to every
honest mind is one of the most unprineipled and wicked of men) fo bring whatever state-
ments he has pleased before the Board, without giving me the opportunity of replying to
them, forgetting and violating the Scripture rule of allowing the accused o have the accuser
face to face; and it is evident the impression has been given, that T am in the habit of visiting
the workhouse for other purposes than those strictly clerical and spiritual, a thing I have
never dune, except upon one single occasion, and that a few days ago, when I took a friend
over the house. T admit you disclaimed charging me with this, but your doing so was
accompanied with inconsistency that I could rot understand, and much astonished me.
Alléw me to remark, that your observations (I cannot call them replies, for they were not
§0) were also altogether irrelevant, 1 had asked forareply ton plain and important question,
Lut this you chose completely to evade. I had been complaining of the conduct of the
Matron, whom I had stated to have most improperly and insultingly interrupted me while
discharging the sacred duties of my office, and then asked if such conduct was to be allowed
towards a Christian minister, adding, * Pray was I engaged or not in the performance of my
duty in reproving the young woman for immoral conduct before the school children?” upon
which you made the irrelevant observations alluded to, but which I have thought it quite
unnecessary {o repeat, as you must sufficiently remember them. T do not hesitate to say,
that your manner of dealing with my question was strongly calculated to encourage the
greafest
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greatest insolence and disrespect in the Master (who was present), and also the Matron,
fowards the Chaplain, whoever he may be. Indeed, the fact of your speaking as you did,
before the Master (whom you have ever avoided reprimanding in the slightest degree for
his iniquities, at lcast in my presence), just amounted to your sanctioning every act of
oppression, tyranny, and wickedness he has been guilty of. I dare not, in conclusion,
forbear remarking upon the painful indifference with which you seemed to treat the subject
of the injury done to the morals of the children, by the unjustifiable proceeding of Mr. Law-
rence, \\'{IO cnew well the bad character and evil habits of the young woman; and I also
take the opportunity of stating that the information I sent you respecting the soverellgn.
the nurse of the ward in which the pauper died can confirm ;* she informed me that she had
made a mistake of a year, when speaking of the matter before the Board. :

' I am, &e. .
14 March 1830. (signed) C. Fowell Watls. -

P. S.—Since writing the above, I have received a communication from Mr. Brown, of
which 1 shall take the necessary notice in due time.
Thursday Evening.

Appendix {(E.)

Moven by 8. Barrow, Esq., seconded by Mr. Passmore:—

That the Chaplain of this Union, the Rev. C. F. Watls, be s_uspended forthwith f:rom the
performance of his duties, and a cheque drawn for 22{. 10s., his salary to the 25th instant;
and further, that a committee of five be appointed to draw up a report to the Poor Law
Commissioners, setting forth the cause of such suspension.

—No. 31.—

Copy of a LETTER from the Clerk of the Bath Union to the Poor Law
Commissioners.

Gentlemen, Abbey-street, Bath, 3 April 1839.

I ax directed Ly the Board of Guardians of this Union to request you will
suspend your decision on the case of the Chaplain, until a further communica-
tion is made to yon by them on the subject. .

I am, &e.
(signed) C. Brown, Clerk.

— No. 32, —

Cory of a LETTER from the Clerk of the Bath Union to the

Poor Law Commissioners,

Gentlemen, Bath Union, 18 April 1839.

Iv consequence of alleged irregularity attending the suspension of the Chap-
lain of this Union, the Board of Guardians proceed_ed yesterdfty again to the
vote, and I am dirccted to forward to you the following resolution, which was
then passed :— : :

“ That the Board, after duc notice, having again taken into their considera-
tion the conduct of the Chaplain, they now confirm and adopt, in all respects,
their tesolution of the 27th day of March last, and that the elerk do acquaint
the Poor Law Commissioners thereof forthwith.”

I am, &e.

. (signed) C. Brown, Clerk.

43¢. D 4
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— No. 33. —
Cory of a LETTER from the Poor Law Commissioners to the Rev, C. 17, W alts.

Poor Law Commission Office, Somersct House,
Sir, 19 Apnil 1830, .

Tue Poor Law Commissioners are of opinion, that in consequence of your

lnte conduct towards the Board of Guardians, and of the resolution respecting

our tenure of the office of Chaplain to which the Board have recently come,

it will not be desirable that you should continue to hold that oftice. The Com-

missioncrs therefore trust that you will, by a voluntary resignation of the office,

;elieve them from the painful necessity of taking measures for removing you
rom it.

(Signed by order of the Board,)
E, Chadwick, Sccretary,

— No. 34, —
Copy of a LETTER from the Rev. C. F Watts to the Poor Law Commissioners.

Gentlemen, 4, Nelson-place, Bath, Friday Evening.

I7 has just been privately reported to me, that the Board of Guardians (or,
more properly, a majority of them,) have sent up a report to you relative to my
conduct, accompanied by a resolution for my removal. I have been informed
that, among other complaints altogether unfounded, and originating in nothing
but bitterness of spirit, in certain individuals at the Board (as Mr. Adey must
know), I have been charged with having persisted in emitting the Communion
Service, after having received instructions to the contrary, or at least after having
been censtired for the omission, Now, most positively do I affirm that nothing
ever passed upon the subject, except what follows: Some weeks ago 1 was
asked if the Communion Serviee was omitted, to which [ replied “ Yes;™ adding,

- that 1 was informed by the schoolmaster, the first time I officiated, it was not

customary to have the Communion Service, as it was advisable and necessary to
shorten the service; I also stated that I knew the former Chaplain had, for
nearly 12 months, conducted the service with the above omission, which I had
reason to suppose was done with the knowledge and sanction of the Board, as
the Master had two or three times said he had received instructions to let the
people have their dinners as soon after half past 12 as possible.  Not a word of
reply was made by the guardians, either in the way of censure or instruction,
g0 that I of course performed the service, the only other Sunday I officiated, in
the usual manner, not having an idea ¥ was to do otherwise. ~ I have likewise
been informed that a letter I addressed to Mr. Anderson at his private residence
was appended on to the report, &c., sent you. I can only say that 1 felt it to be
my duty to write this letter. In conclusion, gentlemen, I would observe, that
I have not sent you the above statement from any anxiety about the losing or
holding a situation in which I have seen iniquity of every kind winked at, and
oppression in every shape countenaneed and allowed, but because I consider it
to be due to myself to do so. The majority of votes against me I understand to
have arisen from the circumstance of the friends of a wealthy magistrate at the
Board, who had heen very warm and zealous in the late business, having exerted
all their energies on the occasion.
I am, &e.
19 April 1839. (signed) C. Fowell IVaits,

¢

Saturday Morning.
P. §—1I have just received your letter, in reply to which I have to observe,
that I cannot understand what is meant by the expression © late conduct towards
the guardians,” fecling as I do, that not only have 1 never, at any time, over-
stepped
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stepped the bounds of duty, but also have, at no time, forgotten the gen{lcm an
and Christian minister in my behaviour towards them.  Their conduct mt.:ln _
some of them) towards me, from the very commencement of the late proceed-

ings, has been everything that was unbecoming and disgraceful, instead of “’]l;lt
it ought to have been towardsa clergyman, m’ul \\.‘hy? just sqnply because 1 bol{d y
and unflinchingly stood upon the cause of justice, humanity, and truth. How

 they behuved during the investigation by Mr. Adey, he can, if he likes, testify.

ult upon insult has been unprovokedly heaped upon me. .I can only add,
{;::ltlllt :m! ready to submit my condluct, and all I lave done, to the judgment ?tf t(llle
wblic, as I purpose doing ; sucl.l a consclousness llav'c Iof qprlghtness, rectitu (]:i
and Clivistizn faithfulicss, unmixed with anything like an improper -SBHI-“’I 1]11 u
1 havedone, I cannot think, gentlemen, of resigning my post, in “111(:1j ave
ever conscienfiously dischurged my duty. You can of course at!o!;t }\{xafevcr
measures you please for removing me from it: the I'ESI.JO‘IlSlblllty lies with your-
selves. My clerical friends quite accord with me in opinion.

April 20.

N. B=~1 received a uote a short time since from Mr. Ad(iy, saying he Sh(]),u‘d
investigate the fresh charges as soon as possible after Easter. There scems to be a

determination this shall not be done.

— No. 35, —
Onpen for the DISMISSAL of the Chaplain of the Workhouse.

To the Guardians of the Poor of the Bath quon, in the pm%nty of S{;_o?]]er:ﬁgd
to the Reverend C. Fowell Watts, Chnplmu. of the W orLcl‘m.u'sc 0 ! 1;3(].,.f
Union ; to the Clerk or Clerks to the Ju§t1ces of Pftty :.e:swns.,q (1le_ tl(::;
the Division or Divisions in which the Parishes :}nd Places com!)me in
snid Union are situate; and to all others wlom it may concern:

We, the Poor Law Commissioners, in

and authorvities vested in us, under and

by virtue of the statute made and pasicd inl tl}etf_lttl; z:lnil f&th I{Eg}zrotii ] ;133] Ill‘giﬁ'ln
. e eyrs S ¢ An N

of his late Majesty King William the Fourth, miitule the

ment and bett{rr Admilﬁstration of the Ltll\vé rlf,:latmlrl;‘ ‘tro t ttheﬁl(’)z:)rﬂ:g (I)]&;%'(laan(:}

! : i Fow afts fr
and Wales,” do hereby remove the said G. Fowe d
i ‘orklious cai And we do hereby order an
Chaplain of the Workhouse of the :usl Union. ¥ e d
dire!:t the said C- Fowell Watts forthwith to ccase to exercise and perform the

powers and duties of the said oflice.

And we do liereby order and direet, that the Guardians of the Poor of the

Bath Union, shall, within onc mm]ltl_l fr(}m]tlui‘gntf] oi }llffq;(ic:;i Spll}?:il:i;] a ﬁ:
and proper person to be the Chaplam of the \Worklious the s s

?l“ !hc]e oflthc enid C. Fowell Watts; and the said Guardians shall, as soon
s con N - report the same, together with

as conveniently may be after sluch 12)1101311111c1:(t; L on s o be reimted
{ y i iven 01 §
the amount of salary intended to be giv : > fo be appointed
i 1 Poor Law Commissioners, in orde:
Claplain of the Workhouse, to us the said Po sione T
ﬂmt]\\'c may approve or disallow the same, or give such other directions thereo

as the casc may require.

Kxow all Men by these Presents, that
pursuance and exceution of the powers

Given under our hands and seal of office this 25th day of April, in Flle‘

year 1839,
Seal of the Poor Law Commissioners, (L. 8.) _

(signed)  J. G. 8. Lefeore.
G. C. Lawis:

|
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— Nu. 36.—

Cory of a LETTER from the Poor Law Commissioners to the Clerk of the
Bath Union,

Poor Law Commission Oflice, Somersct Ilouse,
Sir, 25. April 1839,

Ix issuing their order for the dismission cf My, Watts from the office of Ch

heis. Even in his last letter to the Commissioners (in which he refuses to
adopt their suggestion of voluntarily resigning his oflice), he states that the con-

duct of the Board of Guardians, towards himself, has heen unbecoming and

disgraceful,” and that * jnsult upon insult has been unprovokedly heaped upon

him” by them, If such be Mr., Watts's opinion of the conduct of the Board of

Guardians to him, it is impossible that he should continue to act under them in
a subordinate capacity, with advantage to the public serviee.

The Commissioners, however, wish to add, that the dismission of Mr. Watts
from the office of Chaplain, will in nowise interfere with the investigation of his
additional charges against the Workhouse Master.

(Sigued by order of the Board,)
IV. G. Lumley, Assistant-sccretary.

— No. 37, —
Coey of a REPORT from Mr. Adcy to the Poor Law Commissioners,

Bat Union.

Additional Charges (881 C.) of the Chaplain against the Master of the

Workliouse.

Gentlemen, 1 May 1839.

Havixg observed from your letter (3116 C.) to the clerk to the Guardians of
the Bath Union, that the dismissal of Mr. Watts from the oflice of Chaplain,
would in nowise interfere with the additional charges against the Workhouse
Master, I addressed the note to Mr. Watts, No. 1, annexed.

On Tuesday morning he called on me, and after a long desultory conversation,
Ieft with me the letter (No. 2, annexed.)

I have since mnade such further inquiry as Mr, Watts’s letier enabled me to do;

and I find that these additional charges are (as I suspected and reported fo you

on the back of 1845 C.) virtually the same charges that have heen investigated
by me, and reporied to you, or investigated by the Board of Guardians, and
explained fully to their satisfaction, but put in a different shape, in order to
obtain a re-investigation; as I conceive such a mode of proceeding would be
most unjust to the Master of the Workhouse, and would, I am sure, lead to still
further irritation on the part of the Board of Guardians, I respectfully submit
to you the propriety of your acquainting Mr. Watts with the view I have taken

of these additional charges, and that you thercfore do not think it necessary that
I should proceed further with the inquiry.

Waiting your further instructions,

I remain, &c.
(signed) D, G\ Adey.

ap-
lain to the Workhouse of the Bath Union, the Poor Law Commissioners desire

to state that they concur in the opinion of the Board of Guardians (expressed in
their resolutions of the 17th instant, and the 27th ultimo), that Mr., Watts could
not coutinue to perform the dutics of Chaplain in a satisfactory manner, consi-
dering his present relation to the Board of Guardians, whose responsible officer
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—-No. 38.—
Tirst Enclosure te No. 37.

White Hart, Bath, 27 April 1839.

Dear Sir, ne into the charges against the Master of the

Berore proceeding to exami

last, I must beg
3 sontained in your letter of the 26th January last,
{]}E::l;a:g:;kc:}o;s& tit;oil':::‘{]lﬂils‘il me '?vith the following further information.

1

J ilty of
With reference to the first charge, © That Mr. Lawrence has been guilty o

several acts (and many of them quite recent (]mcs) o,l" thﬁaI?OSt tyrannical oppres-

sion and cruelty towards the inmates of the house;™ pray,

the inmates on whom such ac
" took place.

specify the names of
ts were perpetrated, and the periods when the same

i nd the period of its occurrence. . o rernant
! ?\l’?t;:lilcg;;ezt to thclthird charge, viz. % of confining for 24 hours a preg

i ished;” pray,
-oman for a trifling offence, and letting drunkcn?ess (ﬁ'?oamz{)t‘,“\l:l];n]:gh ’51151; wgs
}‘0 1:1int me with the name of the woman, and ltll(:l 1(11 fod ot e of the
'w(xlllﬁ'ncd and the name of the drunken person alluded to,
€0 y &
transaction. T am, &
(signed)  D.G. Adey.

To the Rev. C. T. Watts.

— NO- 39! —
Second Enclosure to No. 37.

4, Nelson-place, Monday Morning,
April 29,(1:1839:{ -
sition 1
ot see why my altered pos: )
e th(}e rm)naimng charges against

Dear Sir, -
i i t I
x reconsideration, I admi ' .
U I:’opl? should lead me to decline fol‘l.owmg. up g g e T
o Mas Workhouse left uninvestigated, althong same fine ¢
the Master of the Wor o tancce, 1o sl

i 1 very little disposed, under exi 2 haps treat-
}.flrll;lle:fl'd:gltlllefigne\ve}cl insults 0} wicked and godless men, and perhay
's

Hewett, without
i [ saw the young man ett,
bad and disgraceful as youn e
mm']t 'Illue?c:‘l\y\'l?:tcver, receive from them. 1 trust, hoz.xe\t cg,c cﬂls?(r)i mill he some
:il_nt)l ci lieck and restraint put upon them on the pric;en e ‘that’l e e
" :13 Y 1 the information you ask for, previously o sccrn g e alting
send )(l:;' and proceedings both of the guardians and 'omr‘nrq’ oners in puitive
C(I)ll'lthg im'estli]ﬂation to the present period, _when, T have e\I 1ea ‘?e cason 10 b ot
:everl.'lil of thcupartics who \\'oul([lrlf)f‘e re(t]lllqudc‘tlc:n:t];[r)!ecz‘x;{'l e e S fow
‘hen I am so differently circumsts hat T was ot
:nhgnltll?su i(;;’oa?sdopa kind I will not exp’ress my tzplll]l)lg: of,I}Jl‘;l;.n“ ;lgﬁl;:ring (o
! , - -
i i o pass judgment upon. " ing to my
o a“((llustrlnll))?;c‘)tl;all Iélll]léll(i ::aup onl)'! fu?nish you in part w ith the informatio
emoran ) nish you In | .
y uire, not having taken down dates 1n every czllls -+ %o, e, Laurel Dasis;
¥ Chiat 1st. Name of woman pushed down headlong, o, &o. Lanrel Sows
g date. Names of men sent to police station for ‘é arxll) ng their hands
: h(;“l:i:]:: 24 hc;urs without food, John Jennings anq fllcatlr.\&c agc) jo];n et
illlllouthsl aro. Name of man with swollen legs cursed at, &C. &€.
ne time i Vovemnber.
some time in last November, .
datCClmr e 2d. While the Chaplain was speaking to" e pon-hom (the
the butt%ry— Mrs. Lawrence came in and m_ade avy tllt:e(z: e D ity
Chaplain) ap Jlying to him various opprobious epl ot sk T repliod
1ap all&’ i] ll. ]m\f:i‘ng asked, as she said, questions abou e, B e e
;,llﬂ}jb();’ le(\:;:r t:1t, any time done. This, 110\\'(1\@16 ltlldl 'thc:l?dhhin “-ou,l Figiioe
tesived hin ‘hich the Chaplamn s v as S
sir i man to go out, which ' e o't B Sl
dcbl“e({nll.l(‘lmc:tttl;ll} t::mi)it of brtﬁnd and cheese, when Ms. L. exclaimed, .
as he

- then,
489.

a man named Reynolds, in
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then, if you don’t choose to go out, T will give it to you; for I'll lock you in
here for a couple of hours, and sce how you will like that.”  The door was then
locked, but in a few minutes opened again, and the Chaplain shortly after quitted
the buttery, Mrs. L. still continuing to abuse him for having listened to any-
thing hie had heard against any of her family. Date, January Iast.

Charge 3d. The name of the drunken man is Rose ; date of transaction,
December last,

I am, &e.

(signed) C. Fowell IVatts.
To D. G. Adey, Esq., White Hart.

— No. 40, —

Cory of a LETTER from the Poor Law Commissioners to the Reyerend
: C. F. IVatts.

Poor Law Commission Office, Somerset House,

Sir, 7 May 1839,

Tue Poor Law Commissioners have received from their Assistant Commis-
sioner, Mr. Adey, a copy of a letter addressed by him to you on the 27th ultimo,
requesting information on the subjeet of the additional charges preferred by you
against the Master of the Bath Union Workhouse, on the 26th of January
fast, and the Commissioners have also received from him a copy of your reply
to his inquiries, dated the 29th ultimo.

The Commissioners learn from a report from their Assistant Commissioner,
that he has made inquiry on the subject of the further charges you have brought
agninst the Master of the Workhouse, and the Comnissioners are informed that
these charges are virtually the same as those which have already been investi-
gated by Mr. Adey and the Board of Guardians, and reported fo and decided
upon by the Commissioners.

Under these circumstances the Commissioners
do not deem it necessary further to interfere in the matter in question, and the
Commissioners have informed Mr. Adey that they do not require him to make
any additional investigation with respect to the charges adverted to.

have to acquaint you that the

(Signed by order of the Board,)
George Coode, Assistant-secretary.

—No, 41, —

Cory of a LETTER from the Poor Law Commissioners to the Clerk of the
Bath Union.
Poor Law Commission Office, Somerset House,

Sir, . 7 May 1839,

forward to you, for the information of
on, a _copy of a letter they have ad-
»_the Reverend C, Fowell Watts, rela-
1im against the Master of the Unijon

Tie Poor Law Commissioners herewith

workhouse,

(Signed by order of the Board,)

George Coode, Assistant-secretary.

B et
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~No. 42, —
Cory of a LETTER from the Poor Law Commissioners to Mr. Adey.

Poor Law Commission Office, Somerset House,
Sir 7 May 1839.

v Commissioners have to acknowledge the receipt of your report
of TI::,E::??;SI{;I:L relative to the additional charges prefell':'e({bekI}\lIr. “":;tltzi
the late Chaplain of the Bath Union, against the Master of the 1 or ct);llse s and
the Commissioners enclose for your information a copy of a letter ergydei‘;n
addressed to Mr. Watts, by which you will learn thqt t e_Corpmlss_lgn e, doom
it unnccessary that you should institute any further investigation with
to the charges in queatmn’(Signcd. by order of the Board,)

George Coode, Assistant-secretary.

Enclosure, a copy
of No. 38.
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